
 

 

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  

Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 

April 4, 2018 7:00 pm 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:00 PM 

2. GREEN THEMES PRESENTATION 

A. Rebecca Esselman – PAH Contamination 

 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

A. March 7, 2018 

 

5. PUBLIC REMARKS 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Township Wetland Ordinance Review 

B. Environmental Commission Rules of Procedure 

C. Ember Oaks Wetland Use Permit #18-02 (SP Investments) 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

A. 2018 Strategic Plan 

 

8. CHAIR’S REPORT 

9. STAFF REPORT  

A. Projects update 

 

10. COMMISSION/LIASON/WORKGROUP REPORTS 

A. Planning 

B. Land Preservation 

C. Energy 

D. Parks and Recreation 

E. Transportation 

F. Student Report 

G. Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Report 

 

11. PUBLIC REMARKS 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 



U.S. Department of the Interior
U.S. Geological Survey

Fact Sheet 2016 –3017 
April 2016

Coal-Tar-Based Pavement Sealcoat—Potential Concerns 
for Human Health and Aquatic Life

Sealcoat is the black, viscous liquid sprayed or painted on many asphalt parking lots, driveways,  
and playgrounds to protect and enhance the appearance of the underlying asphalt. Studies by the  
U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), academic institutions, and State and local agencies have identified 
coal-tar-based pavement sealcoat as a major source of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon (PAH)  
contamination in urban and suburban areas and a potential concern for human health and aquatic life.1

Key Findings:
Human Health Concerns—As coal-tar-based sealcoat ages, it wears into small particles with high levels of 
PAHs that can be tracked into homes and incorporated into house dust. For people who live adjacent to coal- 
tar-sealcoated pavement, ingestion of PAH-contaminated house dust and soil results in an elevated potential 
cancer risk, particularly for young children. Exposure to PAHs, especially early in childhood, has been linked 
by health professionals to an increased risk of lung, skin, bladder, and respiratory cancers.2

Aquatic Life Concerns—Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement, even runoff collected more than 3 months 
after sealcoat application, is acutely toxic to fathead minnows and water fleas, two species commonly used to 
assess toxicity to aquatic life. Exposure to even highly diluted runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement can 
cause DNA damage and impair DNA repair. These findings demonstrate that coal-tar-sealcoat runoff can  
remain a risk to aquatic life for months after application.

Coal-tar-sealcoat, which contains elevated levels of PAHs, is 
commonly applied to parking lots, driveways, and some recreational 
areas across the central and eastern parts of the United States. 
Friction from vehicle tires abrades sealcoat into small particles  
that can be tracked indoors or washed down storm drains and  
into streams, potentially harming human and aquatic life. 



Light gray patches of asphalt show where 
sealcoat has been worn from the pavement. 
Applicators recommend reapplication of 
sealcoat from every 1 to 5 years.1

As Sealcoat Wears Off, Where Does It Go?

Worn particles of coal-tar-based sealcoat containing high concentrations of PAHs and related chemicals are 
transported by rain, wind, tires, and even our feet from pavement to other environmental settings. Sealcoat product 
(A), after it dries, gradually abrades to a powder and becomes part of the dust on the pavement (B). Pavement dust 
is transported by rainfall runoff (C) to stormwater-management devices (D) or to receiving streams and lakes (E). 
Pavement dust also adheres to tires (F) that track it onto unsealed pavement, and wind and runoff transport the dust 
to nearby soils (G). Sealcoat particles tracked into residences can become incorporated into the house dust (H). 
Associated PAH concentrations for these settings, from studies by the USGS, other government agencies,  
and academic institutions, are given below.

Asphalt pavement

D. Stormwater- 
management
device

E. Lake sediment

Wind

G. Soil

A. Sealcoat product

F. Tires

Abrasion
B. Pavement dust

Ad

hesion

H. House dust

Runoff
C. Runoff

Tracking

SEALANT

Sealcoat

NOT TO SCALE

Setting

PAH concentration*
(milligrams per kilogram)

Coal-tar- 
sealcoat settings

Non-coal-tar- 
sealcoat settings

(A) Sealcoat products 66,000 50
(B) Pavement dust 2,200 11
(C) Runoff, particles  
   Runoff, unfiltered water

3,500
62

54
4

(D) Stormwater-management- 
   device sediment

646 2

(E) Lake sediment 33 0.4
(F) Particles adhered to tires 1,380 3
(G) Soil 105 2
(H) House dust 129 5
*Concentrations are means or medians. References and additional information  

are provided in Mahler and others (2012).1

W
rit

e 
Fr

om
 K

ar
en

, C
C 

BY
-N

C_
N

D 
2.

0

View the publication:  
http://dx.doi.org/10.1021/es203699x

https://www.flickr.com/photos/writefromkaren/2878433959/in/photolist-A3s8d3-BiMaZ-BiMb3-atWpPK-6qSHwp-6qWU2q-aBTp6J-BiMaY-9SzeqW-5omJ8H-7a2QUX-cpYXaQ-cpYX4o
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/2.0/
http://dx.doi.org/10.1021/es203699x


PAH Levels in Asphalt-Based and Coal-Tar-Based Sealcoat
Pavement sealcoat is a commercial product that is applied to many asphalt 

parking lots, driveways, and playgrounds in North America in an effort to protect 
and beautify the underlying asphalt. It rarely is used on public roads.

Most sealcoat products are either coal-tar or asphalt emulsion, although some 
alternative products now are available.3 Coal tar and coal-tar pitch have extremely 
high concentrations of PAHs as do coal-tar-based sealcoat products, which 
typically are 20 –35 percent coal tar or coal-tar pitch. Asphalt and asphalt-based 
sealcoat products have much lower concentrations of PAHs.

For historical and economic reasons, use of asphalt-based sealcoat in the 
United States is more common west of the Continental Divide and use of coal-tar-
based sealcoat is more common east of the Continental Divide, except in States, 
counties, and municipalities where use of coal-tar-based sealcoat is prohibited.3 

PAH levels in dust swept from sealed  
parking lots reflect the type of pavement  
sealcoat commonly used west and east of the  
Continental Divide.1 Concentrations, in units of milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), also referred to as “parts per million” (ppm), shown 
here are for the sum of the 16 PAHs listed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency as Priority Pollutants. Concentrations are for 
composite samples from multiple parking lots or a median of several individual samples.5

Asphalt-based sealcoat, 
primarily used west of 
the Continental Divide, 
typically contains about 
50 mg/kg PAHs.4

Coal-tar-based sealcoat, primarily used 
east of the Continental Divide, typically 
contains 50,000 to 100,000 mg/kg PAHs.4

Seattle

Portland

Salt Lake City

Austin

Minneapolis

Chicago

Detroit

Washington, D.C.

New Haven

5.2

<13

2.1

570

3,200

3,400

3,200

1,300

2,000

Continental Divide 

Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) are a 
group of chemicals created by heating or burning material 
that contains carbon. The many sources of PAHs to the 
urban environment span a wide range of PAH concen- 
trations and include asphalt (2–9 mg/kg), tire particles 
(84 mg/kg), used motor oil (730 mg/kg), and coal-tar-based 
sealcoat (34,000–202,000 mg/kg).6 PAHs are an environ
mental concern because many cause cancer, mutations, 
birth defects, or death in fish, wildlife, and invertebrates.7 
Exposure to sunlight greatly intensifies the adverse effects 
of several PAHs. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) has classified seven PAHs as probable human 
carcinogens (Class B2) and 16 PAHs as Priority Pollutants. 
Environmental and health effects depend on which PAHs 
are present and their concentrations.

Coal tar is a byproduct of the coking, liquefaction, or 
gasification of coal and is a complex mixture composed 
primarily of aromatic hydrocarbons. Coal-tar pitch is the 
residue that remains after the distillation of coal tar; it is 
a complex mixture of high molecular weight aromatic 
hydrocarbons and black carbon solids. The primary use 
of coal-tar pitch is in electrode manufacturing for the 
aluminum industry.8 Coal-tar emulsion pavement sealants 
contain either crude coal tar (Chemical Abstracts Service 
[CAS] Registry Number 8007– 45–2) or coal-tar pitch 
(CAS Registry Number 65996 –93–2). Coal tar and  
coal-tar pitch are known human carcinogens.9

PAHs are made up of various arrangements of benzene rings. PAHs 
commonly occur in the environment as mixtures, which typically include at 
least some of the PAHs that are classified as probable human carcinogens.

Coal

Coke

Coke oven Coal tar Coal-tar
distillation

Coal-tar
pitch

Pavement
sealcoat



Dietary
ingestion

Low house-dust 
ingestion rate 

(0.027 gram per day)

High house-dust 
ingestion rate 

(0.101 gram per day)

Non-dietary ingestion

0

50

100

150

250

200

Co
al

-ta
r s

ea
lc

oa
t

Co
al

-ta
r s

ea
lc

oa
t

N
o 

co
al

-ta
r s

ea
lc

oa
t

N
o 

co
al

-ta
r s

ea
lc

oa
t

Pr
ob

ab
le

 h
um

an
 c

ar
ci

no
ge

n 
(C

la
ss

 B
2)

in
ta

ke
, i

n 
na

no
gr

am
s 

pe
r k

ilo
gr

am
bo

dy
 w

ei
gh

t p
er

 d
ay

5.1
Indoor

129
Indoor

No coal-tar
     sealcoat

Coal-tar
     sealcoat

9.0

Outdoor

4,760

Outdoor

Photograph by Jeffrey M
elton, CC BY-N

C 2.0

Children ingest  
house dust and soil when they put their hands or objects into 
their mouth. Much of the estimated excess cancer risk associated 
with the ingestion of PAH-contaminated soil and house dust is 
incurred during early childhood.

The USGS partnered with a human-health-risk analyst to estimate the 
excess lifetime cancer risk associated with the ingestion of house dust and 
soil for people living adjacent to parking lots with and without coal-tar-
based sealcoat. Excess cancer risk is the extra risk of developing cancer 
caused by exposure to a toxic substance. The excess cancer risk for people 
living adjacent to coal-tar-sealcoated pavement (1.1 cancer incidences 
for every 10,000 individuals exposed) was 38 times higher, on average 
(central tendency), than for people living adjacent to unsealed pavement.  
The central tendency excess cancer risk estimated for people living adjacent  
to coal-tar-sealcoated pavement exceeds the threshold generally considered 
by the EPA as making remediation advisable.

The assessment used measured concentrations of the B2 PAHs in  
house dust and soils adjacent to coal-tar-sealed pavement (adjusted for 
relative potency to the PAH benzo[a]pyrene), established house dust and  
soil ingestion rates, and the EPA-established slope factor to estimate the 
excess cancer risk. Much of the estimated excess risk comes from  
exposures to PAHs in early childhood (that is, 0−6 years of age). The  
study did not consider the excess cancer risk associated with exposure  
to the sealcoated pavement itself, which has PAH concentrations 10 or  
more times greater than in adjacent residence house dust or soils.5, 10 

Living adjacent to coal-tar-sealed pavement increases cancer risk12

View the publication:
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/es303371t

PAHs from coal-tar-based sealcoat contaminate house dust10

In a study of 23 ground-floor apartments in Austin, Texas, 
PAH levels in house dust in apartments with parking lots sealed 
with a coal-tar-based product were 25 times higher than in 
house dust in apartments with parking lots with other surface 
types (concrete, unsealed asphalt, and asphalt-based sealcoat). 
No relation was found between PAHs in house dust and other 

possible indoor PAH sources such as tobacco smoking and 
fireplace use.

House dust is an important pathway for human exposure to 
many contaminants, including PAHs. This is particularly true for 
small children, who spend time on the floor and put their hands 
and objects into their mouths.

The preschooler living in a residence adjacent to coal-tar-sealed 
pavement who has relatively low hand-to-mouth activity consumes 
about 2.5 times more PAHs from house dust than from their diet.11 
For the more active preschooler, whose hand-to-mouth activity is 
higher, the PAH intake from house dust is nearly 10 times more 
than the PAH intake from their diet.

PAH-contaminated dust on coal-tar-sealcoated pavement 
(right) is tracked indoors.10 Concentrations shown are 
median values for the sum of the 16 Priority Pollutant PAHs, 
in units of milligrams per kilogram, in house dust and 
parking lot dust.

View the publication:
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/es902533r

Potential Risks to Human Health

https://www.flickr.com/photos/nofi/370417954/in/photolist-yJums-yJuna-3fikxq-5nzzZK-6f4gPY-2WSTRc-srWwz-on72T-ae1JVa-wz7rv-29dfu7-5jfbkf-8qfZQ6-8qfYxV-88M3TL-8qfZy2-71w29x-8qfYpX-9DLp3m-4mZJkJ-7AgTH2-aF5U5f-8PFTs-4pDhba-8rSndj-ajMTeE-bGXauD-39n9bg-8aRGyB-7E3nhg-eEj3eT-7NK7dJ-8pLB6L-5NgVJy-4fui1J-b3Ghin-K8Xyy-7cAkdn-rCACF-iig1G-t1PR6-fwX1xc-aZV6Z-9dSimr-5f9YrP-5P1mGN-8kbrJK-811VRp-byqo4X-7Ns7AQ
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/es303371t
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/pdf/10.1021/es902533r


Potential Risks to Aquatic Life
Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement is acutely toxic to aquatic biota13

View the publication:
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/acs.est.5b00933

Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement damages DNA and impairs DNA repair17

Types of DNA damage caused 
by exposure to runoff from 
coal-tar-sealed pavement  
include breaks in the  
DNA strands. 

(Im
ag

e 
fro

m
 G

en
et

ic
 S

ci
en

ce
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

Ce
nt

er
,  

ht
tp

://
le

ar
n.

ge
ne

tic
s.

ut
ah

.e
du

.)

Simultaneous exposure to runoff from coal-tar-sealed pavement and simulated 
sunlight damaged DNA in rainbow trout liver cells, even when the runoff was 
diluted to 1 percent of its initial concentration. The cells were from a cell line 
developed to assess the effects of PAHs on DNA. The test assessed two types of 
DNA damage: strand breaks and alkylated bases.

Although cells can repair some DNA damage, a second experiment 
demonstrated that cells exposed to the coal-tar-sealcoat runoff had an impaired 
capacity to perform at least one type of DNA repair. The combination of DNA 
damage and impaired repair capacity intensifies the potential for long-term damage 
to cell health. DNA damage has many possible consequences, including aging, cell 
death, and mutations. Mutations can affect the function of genes and can potentially 
lead to cancer.

Exposure to runoff from coal-tar-sealed pavement 
collected as much as 42 days after sealcoat application resulted 
in 100 percent mortality to two commonly tested laboratory 
organisms: day-old fathead minnows (Pimephales promelas) and 
water fleas (Ceriodaphnia dubia). In contrast, minnows and water 
fleas exposed to runoff from unsealed pavement experienced no 
more than 10 percent mortality. When the minnows and water 
fleas were also exposed to simulated sunlight, which intensifies 
the toxicity of some PAHs, runoff collected 111 days (more than 
3 months) after sealcoat application caused 100 percent mortality 
to both species, and caused 100 percent mortality to water fleas 
even when diluted to 10 percent of its original strength. 

The USGS collected samples of runoff from 5 hours to 
111 days following sealcoat application to pavement by a 

professional applicator. Total PAH concentrations varied 
relatively little, as rapid decreases in concentrations of low 
molecular weight and nitrogen-substituted PAHs were offset 
by increases in high molecular weight PAHs.14 These results 
demonstrate that runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement 
continues to contain elevated concentrations of PAHs and 
related compounds long after a 24-hour curing time.

A subsequent study by researchers at the National Oceanic 
and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) and the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service found that coal-tar-sealcoat runoff is acutely 
lethal to juvenile coho salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) and causes 
a wide spectrum of abnormalities to zebrafish (Danio rerio) 
embryos.15 They also reported that filtration of the runoff  
through a biorention system substantially reduced toxicity.

Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement is acutely toxic to fathead minnows 
(Pimephales promelas; left) and water fleas (Ceriodaphnia dubia; right).

Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement 
goes down storm drains to receiving 
water bodies. The runoff contains high 
concentrations of PAHs and related 
chemicals that can harm aquatic life.16

http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/acs.est.5b00933
http://learn.genetics.utah.edu


*bjmahler@usgs.gov

45,000 µg/m2-h

1.4 µg/m2-h

ISSN 2327-6916 (print)
ISSN 2327-6932 (online)
http://dx.doi.org/10.3133/fs20163017

Air-Quality Concerns 18, 19

Although unseen, releases of PAHs to the atmosphere (volatilization) 
from freshly coal-tar-sealed pavement are tens of thousands of times higher 
than from unsealed pavement.Volatilization is a potential human-health 
concern because inhalation is an important pathway for human exposure to 
PAHs. Although volatilization decreases rapidly over the weeks following 
application, it nonetheless continues long after application—PAH releases to 
the atmosphere from parking lots sealed from 3 to 8 years prior to sampling 
were on average 60 times higher than PAH releases from unsealed pavement. 

Nationwide, the combined PAH releases each year 
from newly applied coal-tar-based sealcoat are 
estimated to exceed annual vehicle emissions of 
PAHs.18 PAH releases shown here are in units of 
micrograms per meter squared per hour (µg/m2-h).

For more information
Access publications and learn more about PAHs and coal-tar-based 
pavement sealcoat at http://tx.usgs.gov/sealcoat.html.

References Cited
1.	 Mahler, B.J., Van Metre, P.C., Crane, J.L., Watts, A.W., Scoggins, M.,  

and Williams, E.S., 2012, Coal-tar-based pavement sealcoat and PAHs— 
Implications for the environment, human health, and stormwater manage-
ment: Environmental Science and Technology, v. 56, p. 3039–3045.

2.	 Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, 1995, Toxicological  
profile for polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons: Atlanta, Ga., U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, accessed  
November 16, 2015, at http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiles/
tp.asp?id=122&tid=25.

3.	 Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, 2014, Choosing alternatives to coal 
tar-based pavement sealcoats, accessed November 16, 2015, at https://www.
pca.state.mn.us/water/stormwater-great-lakes-coal-tar-sealcoat-pah-reduction.

4.	 City of Austin, 2005, PAHs in Austin, Texas sediments and coal-tar-based 
pavement sealants polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons: City of Austin Water-
shed Protection and Development Review Department, 55 p., accessed  
January 20, 2016, at http://www.austintexas.gov/department/coal-tar.

5.	 Van Metre, P.C., Mahler, B.J., and Wilson, J.T., 2009, PAHs underfoot— 
Contaminated dust from coal-tar sealcoated pavement is widespread in  
the United States: Environmental Science and Technology v. 43, p. 20–25, 
accessed January 20, 2016, at http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/es802119h.

6.	 Mahler, B.J., Van Metre, P.C., Bashara, T.J., Wilson, J.T., and Johns, D.A., 
2005, Parking lot sealcoat—An unrecognized source of urban polycyclic 
aromatic hydrocarbons: Environmental Science and Technology, v. 39,  
p. 5560–5566, accessed January 20, 2016, at http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/ 
10.1021/es0501565.

7.	 Eisler, R., 1987, Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon hazards to fish, wildlife, 
and invertebrates—A synoptic review: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Biological 
Report 85(1.11), accessed January 20, 2016, at http://www.pwrc.usgs.gov/ 
oilinla/pdfs/CHR_11_PAHs.pdf.

8.	 International Agency for Research on Cancer, 2010, Some non-heterocyclic 
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons and some related exposures: IARC Mono-
graphs on the Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans, v. 92 [working 
group met in Lyon, France, Oct. 11–18, 2005], accessed January 20, 2016,  
at http://monographs.iarc.fr/ENG/Monographs/vol92/mono92.pdf.

9.	 National Toxicology Program, 2014, Report on carcinogens (13th ed.): 
Research Triangle Park, N.C., U.S. Department of Health and Human  
Services, Public Health Service, accessed January 20, 2016, at 
http://ntp.niehs.nih.gov/pubhealth/roc/roc13/.

10.	Mahler, B.J., Van Metre, P.C., Wilson, J.T., Musgrove, M., Burbank, T.L., 
Ennis, T.E., and Bashara, T.J., 2010, Coal-tar-based parking lot sealcoat— 
An unrecognized source of PAH to settled house dust: Environmental  
Science and Technology, v. 44, p. 894–900.

11. Williams, E.S., Mahler, B.J., and Van Metre, P.C., 2012, Coal-tar pavement 
sealants might significantly increase children’s PAH exposures: Envi- 
ronmental Pollution, v. 164, p. 40–41, accessed January 20, 2016, at  
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0269749112000279.

12. Williams, E.S., Mahler, B.J., and Van Metre, P.C., 2013, Cancer risk from 
incidental ingestion exposures to PAHs associated with coal-tar-sealed  
pavement: Environmental Science and Technology, v. 47, p. 1101–1109.

13. Mahler, B.J., Ingersoll, C.G., Van Metre, P.C., Kunz, J.L., and Little, E.E., 
2015, Acute toxicity of runoff from sealcoated pavement to Ceriodaphnia 
dubia and Pimephales promelas: Environmental Science and Technology, 
v. 49, p. 5060–5069.

14. Mahler, B.J., Van Metre, P.C., and Foreman, W.T., 2014, Concentrations 
of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) and azaarenes in runoff from 
coal-tar- and asphalt-sealcoated pavement: Environmental Pollution, v. 188,  
p. 81–87, accessed January 20, 2016, at http://www.sciencedirect.com/ 
science/article/pii/S0269749114000141.

15. McIntyre, J.K., Edmunds, R.C., Anulacion, B.F., Davis, J.W., Incardona, 
J.P., Stark, J.D., and Scholz, N.L., 2015, Severe coal tar sealcoat runoff  
toxicity to fish is prevented by bioretention filtration: Environmental  
Science and Technology, v. 50, p. 1570–1578, accessed January 20, 2016,  
at http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/acs.est.5b04928.

16. Douben, P.E.T., 2003, PAHs—An ecotoxicological perspective: West  
Sussex, England, John Wiley & Sons Ltd., 392 p.

17. Kienzler, A., Mahler, B.J., Van Metre, P.C., Schweigert, N., Devaux, A., and 
Bony, S., 2015, Exposure to runoff from coal-tar-sealed pavement induces 
genotoxicity and impairment of DNA repair capacity in the RTL-W1 fish 
liver cell line: Science of the Total Environment, v. 520, p. 73–80, accessed 
January 20, 2016, at http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/
S0048969715002703.

18. Van Metre, P.C., Majewski, M.S., Mahler, B.J., Foreman, W.T., Braun, C.L., 
Wilson, J.T., and Burbank, T., 2012, PAH volatilization following applica-
tion of coal-tar-based pavement sealant: Atmospheric Environment, v. 51,  
p. 108–115, accessed January 20, 2016, at http://www.sciencedirect.com/
science/article/pii/S135223101200057X.

19. Van Metre, P.C., Majewski, M.S., Mahler, B.J., Foreman, W.T., Braun, C.L., 
Wilson, J.T., and Burbank, T., 2012, Volatilization of polycyclic aromatic 
hydrocarbons from coal-tar-sealed pavement: Chemosphere, v. 88, p. 1–7, 
accessed January 20, 2016, at http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.chemosphere. 
2011.12.072.

By Barbara J. Mahler,* Michael D. Woodside, and Peter C. Van Metre

http://dx.doi.org/10.3133/fs20163017
http://tx.usgs.gov/sealcoat.html
http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiles/tp.asp?id=122&tid=25
http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiles/tp.asp?id=122&tid=25
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/stormwater-great-lakes-coal-tar-sealcoat-pah-reduction
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/stormwater-great-lakes-coal-tar-sealcoat-pah-reduction
http://www.austintexas.gov/department/coal-tar
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/es802119h
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/es0501565
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/es0501565
http://www.pwrc.usgs.gov/oilinla/pdfs/CHR_11_PAHs.pdf
http://www.pwrc.usgs.gov/oilinla/pdfs/CHR_11_PAHs.pdf
http://monographs.iarc.fr/ENG/Monographs/vol92/mono92.pdf
http://ntp.niehs.nih.gov/pubhealth/roc/roc13/
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0269749112000279
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0269749114000141
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0269749114000141
http://pubs.acs.org/doi/abs/10.1021/acs.est.5b04928
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0048969715002703
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0048969715002703
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S135223101200057X
http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.chemosphere.2011.12.072


ORDINANCE REGULATING PAVEMENT SEALANT PRODUCTS 

A CITY ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF COAL TAR AND 

OTHER HIGH- PAH SEALER PRODUCTS 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE TO ENFORCE THE STATUTORY PROHIBITION ON THE USE AND 
SALE OF COAL TAR AND OTHER HIGH PAH CONTENT SEALANT PRODUCTS 
WITHIN THE CITY OF _______.  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ______DOES ORDAIN:  

SECTION 1. PURPOSE. 

 The City of _____ understands that lakes, rivers, streams and other bodies of water are 
natural assets which enhance the environmental, recreational, cultural and economic resources 
and contribute to the general health and welfare of the community. 

 The use of sealers on asphalt driveways is a common practice.  However, scientific 
studies on the use of driveway sealers have demonstrated a relationship between the use of coal 
tar-based sealers and certain health and environmental concerns, including increased cancer risk 
to humans and impaired water quality in streams. 

 The purpose of this ordinance is to prohibit the use and sale of sealant products 
containing >0.1% Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs) by weight,  including coal tar-
based sealer in the City of _______, in order to protect, restore, and preserve the quality of its 
waters and protect the health of its residents.  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. 

 Except as may otherwise be provided or clearly implied by context, all terms shall be 
given their commonly accepted definitions.  For the purpose of this ordinance, the following 
definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

 ASPHALT BASED SEALER. A petroleum based sealer material that is commonly used 
on driveways, parking lots, and other surfaces. 

 COAL TAR. A byproduct of the process used to manufacture coke from coal. 

COAL TAR SEALANT PRODUCT. A surface applied sealing product containing coal 
tar, coal tar pitch, coal tar pitch volatiles, RT-12, Refined Tar or any variation assigned the 
Chemical Abstracts Service (CAS) numbers 65996-92-1, 65996-93-2, 65996-89-6, or 8007-45-2 
or related substances containing more than 0.1% PAHs, by weight. 

CITY. The City of _______.  



HIGH PAH CONTENT SEALANT PRODUCT. A surface-applied product containing 
steam cracked petroleum residues, steam-cracked asphalt, pyrolysis fuel oil, heavy fuel oil, 
ethylene tar, or any variation of those substances assigned the chemical abstracts service number 
64742-90-1, 69013-21-4 or related substances containing more than 0.1% PAHs, by weight.   

PERSON. An individual, trustee, executor, fiduciary, corporation, firm, partnership, 
association, organization, or other legal entity acting as a unit. 

PAHs. Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons. A group of organic chemicals formed during 
the incomplete burning of coal, oil, gas, or other organic substances. Present in coal tar and 
known to be harmful to humans, fish, and other aquatic life.   

SECTION 3. PROHIBITIONS. 

In accordance with this ordinance: 

A. No person shall apply a coal tar or other high PAH content sealant product on asphalt 
paved surfaces within the City. 

B. No person shall sell a coal tar or other high PAH content sealant product that is 
formulated or marketed for application on asphalt-paved surfaces within the City. 

C. No person shall allow a coal tar or other high PAH content sealant product to be 
applied upon property that is under that person’s ownership or control. 

D. No person shall contract with any commercial sealer product applicator, residential or 
commercial developer, or any other person for the application of any coal tar or other 
high PAH content sealant product to any driveway, parking lot, or other surface 
within the City. 

E. No commercial sealer product applicator, residential or commercial developer, or 
other similar individual or organization shall direct any employee, independent 
contractor, volunteer, or other person to apply any coal tar or other high PAH content 
sealant product to any driveway, parking lot, or other surface within the City. 

SECTION  4. REGISTRATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND 
PROCEDURES FOR COMMERCIAL APPLICATORS 

(1) All commercial applicators shall register with the city prior to applying pavement sealant in 
the city in any calendar year. 

(2) Registration under this chapter shall be valid until expiration. Registration shall begin on 
January 1 and shall expire on December 31 of each calendar year. 

(3) Commercial applicators shall submit a complete registration application to the City Offices, 
along with the registration fee according to the schedule established by resolution of City 



Council. The fee shall be calculated to include the cost of registration application review and 
periodic field inspection. 

(4) The following information shall be included in a complete application for registration: 

 (a) The legal name of the commercial applicator, any other names used, the address, 
 telephone number and contact person for the applicant. 

 (b) The product name, type of use, MSDS sheet and CAS numbers. 

 (c) A notarized, sworn statement signed by an owner or duly authorized representative of  
 a commercial applicator indicating that the applicator will comply with the requirements 
 of the Ordinance of the city throughout the registration period. 

 (d) All other information requested on the application. 

(5) The application shall be approved if it is complete, the applicator has complied with the 
previous year’s reporting requirement, and the use of pavement sealant complies with this 
chapter. 

(6) The application for registration shall be approved or denied within 21 days of submission of a 
completed application. 

(7) A registered applicator shall notify the City in writing of any change in the information in the 
application for registration within 7 days of any such change. 

SECTION 5. PENALTY. 

 Any person convicted of violating any provision of this ordinance is guilty of a 
misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine not to exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or 
imprisonment for not more than ninety (90) days, or both, plus all costs of prosecution, including 
but not limited to staff and time and attorney costs, in either case. 

SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY.  

 If any provision of this ordinance is found to be invalid for any reason by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected.  

 

 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 This ordinance becomes effective on the date of its publication.  



This ordinance was adopted by Council on _____ and is effective upon its publication on 
________. 

 

_________________________________  

Mayor  

 

Attested:  

_________________________________  

Clerk  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN          

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

March 7, 2018 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 

517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Commissioners Jim Kielbaso, Ned Jackson, John Sarver, Kirk Lapham, Ben Holland 

ABSENT: Chair Bill McConnell, Commissioners Susan Masten, Marina Ionescu 

STAFF: Principal Planner Peter Menser 

OTHERS: None 

 

1. Call meeting to order 

 

 Vice-Chair Ned Jackson called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 

 

2. Green Themes Presentation – NONE  

 

3. Approval of Agenda 

                 

Commissioner Keilbaso moved to approve the agenda as written. 

Supported by Commissioner Sarver. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.    

 

4. Approval of Minutes 

 

A. December 6, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 Commissioner Kielbaso moved to approve the minutes as drafted. 

Supported by Commissioner Lapham. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.  

 

5. Public Remarks – NONE  

 

6. New Business – NONE 

 

A. Township Wetland Ordinance Review - Commissioner Lapham explained that he was working on 

scheduling a meeting to identify changes proposed to the Township’s wetland ordinance but has 

not yet been able to do so due to scheduling conflicts.  Vice-Chair Jackson provided an overview of 

the concerns identified by Chair McConnell, which included the consideration of wetland 

essentiality and the public interest component of the wetland use permit review criteria.    

 

7. Old Business 

 

A. 2018 Strategic Plan - The Environmental Commission chose to move discussion on this agenda 

item to the next agenda due to the absence of Chair McConnell. 

 

8. Chair's Report  

 

Vice-Chair Jackson noted his appreciation for Township staff plowing the Interurban Trail during the 

winter season as he uses it for commuting. 

DRAFT 



Environmental Commission 

March 7, 2018 Minutes - DRAFT 

Page 2 

 

 

9. Staff Report – NONE  

 

10. Commissioner/Liaison/Workgroup Reports 

 

Planning: Principal Planner Menser provided an overview of Planning Commission activities. 

 

Land Preservation: Commissioner Kielbaso shared the publication of an article in the Town Courier 

announcing the acquisition of new Land Preservation properties.  The Land Preservation program 

now consists of approximately 915 acres. 

 

Energy: Commissioner Sarver reported that the Township has issued a request for proposals to 

install a 20kw solar system at the Public Works building.  He also noted that solar education 

workshops are scheduled and that he attended a recent intergovernmental meeting related to 

development of a climate and sustainability plan for the City of Lansing. 

 

Parks and Recreation: No report. 

 

Transportation: No report. 

 

Student Report: Student Commissioner Holland announced an upcoming Spaghetti Dinner at 

Okemos High School and the related Earth Club.   

 

11. Public Remarks – Commissioner Lapham announced the City of East Lansing is now offering 

recycling of Styrofoam. 

 

12. Adjournment 

 Vice-Chair Jackson adjourned the regular meeting at 7:35 p.m. 

 









���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���$'() *+,-*.,-*/,-*0,- 1234564789:;<2=>79?7@64=A=3;B4=A3CD7E6F6GH647IJD7IKLMNOPQRSTUVVWUXYZ[T\Y]SYR_̂̀aNbXUacWUdSRePYfUgT\RShR[\Yi53567j3:746?646;F6<k7l65j3;A7>4956F5=9;D7@1m7nIopnKnKL7657<6qpr7j9F3j7:65j3;A7>4956F5=9;794A=;3;F6<D7@1mnIopnKnKMsotD7nIopnKnKupvacawaxyUzWU{SYSTPee|}UVV~zz�WUvS�Y[R[\Y�W�����-+��0�-�-+���/�-����-���-.��.��.�-/�+��.��.�-����-���-.��/�++�-����.��/�-����-���-.�++��0�-/�+��.�++����������������� ¡¢£�¤� ¥¢�¦�¡�§� ¦¢�¢£������̈¢�¡����¤��¢�¦ ¤�©��£�¢�¦����¦ª��¤���¥�¦����¢�¦¢© �«�¡�¤��¤��¥���¤��¢�¢�©¤���£��¬©�§¤���� ��¤���©��¤�¬¤�©��¦ �­���¡�©¦¤�¢�¦�¡�®� ��¤�¥�¦����̄°±²°³́µ¶·̧́ ¹º� ¤�« ¦¤�¢�� ���ª� ¤�« ¦¤�¢�¤�¦¤�¦ ��¡�§��¡��¤������¤�¦�¡¢��� �¢�¥��ª�¤¦��§� ¤�������¤��� ������©­©��£��©�̈¡����¦�­����¤������������̄�« ��¡���£�¢§¦�����£���¢¤���£� �¦ �������­�̈��£����¡���£�¦�¡� �¢¤����� § �¤�©¤���»µ¼½³́¾²¼²¿À�­����¤������������̄À�§� ¥¦���¤�¢̈ �¦©���¦¤� �©����©¤����� ��¤�� �¡� �©¤�©��¤¦©¤���¤��¦�����¦�¡��¦Á�£�§��¡£� �ª� �� ¢¤ �¦¥»À�¢�¦¢��¦��� ���¤� ¥�¤¤��¤�¡� �©¤�¢̈ �¦©���¦¤� �©����©¤����¤��¦�����¦�¡��¦Á�£�§��¡£� �ª� �� �¢¤ �¦¥»À���¤�¦�¡����©���¢�§¦ ¤�¦��­�� ���¤� ��­���©¦¤�¡���¤����ÂÃÃ����¤����¤���� ¡��¦ ­�������¦¤� �¥¦ Á����¦����¦�¡��¦Á�£�§��¡£� �ª� �� �¢¤ �¦¥£�̈���¢¢��¤��¢�¡�¥��¢¤ ¦¤�¡�«­�¤���§ �§� ¤­����� �«­�©��¦ �¦�¡©��ª��©�����ª�¡��©��¤�¦¤�¤�� ���¢���� ��¦¤������¦¤�ª� �«�¤�����¤�����¤�¦�¡�¦�¡�¤������¦�¡��¦Á�£�§��¡£ �ª� �� �¢¤ �¦¥�¤¦Á������¤��¤���§̈ §�¢�¢����¤��¢�¦ ¤�©��£�¦¢�¢�¤��� ¤�����Ä�ÅÅÆÇÇÈ»����� �¥� ��¦ �¦¢������¤�¦�¡�¢�§¦ ¦¤�¡����­�«­�«¦  �� ¢£�¢̈©��¦¢�¡�Á�¢£� �¦¡¢£�«� ¥¢�� ��¤�� �¢�¥��¦ ��¦¤̈ �¢£�«̈¤����­���¤��¦�­����¤�����¤�¦�¡�¦ �¦¢�©��¤��̈�̈¢�̈�¡� �¤���© �¤� �¦�¡�¢© �«�¡����¢̈«¢�©¤���ÉÇÊ£�ÉÅÊ�� �ÉËÊ����¤��¢�¡�Ì��¤���»Í¹Î¼¿́³���Ì��£�§�¦©��� �¡̈¥§»Í́Ï¹µ³¼Ï¶¼̧ ¶µ¼ÐÐ²½́³Ñ¶Î·°½½́½¾¶°½Í¶Í¹Ò¹·¼ÎÐ¹½³����Ó� �©¤� ����Ô�¥¥̈ ��¤­�Õ�¦������¦�¡�Ó�ª���§¥��¤��� �¤�������¢��§�� ���¢�¡�¢�����»¹½Ò́Ï¼½Ð¹½³°·¶µ¼ÐÐ¿́¿́¼½����«�¡­�© �¦¤�¡�§̈ ¢̈¦�¤�¤��Ô�¦§¤� �Å£�À ¤�©���Ö×£�Ó�ª�¢����Ø£�¦�¡�¡�¢���¦¤�¡�«­�¤�������¢��§�Ù�¦ ¡�¤�¦¡ª�¢��¤�������¢��§������¤�¦�¡��¢¢̈�¢»¸́··¶Ð°³¹Ḯ°·



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���̂<32782/9<8;/X7Y0<2/8_B3>120.6612.32A.;<8;/7020.662762723<6B0;2.=27:<;07892B6<2A<3@/;29<4/6/.8̀2.3T82.:8<32.=2A3.A<3;>2:/;?/82abb2=<<;2.=2;?<2:<;07892;?7;2/62;?<26BY_<4;2.=272:<;07892B6<2A<3@/;9<4/6/.8CFRNc7892.44BA/<92.32;.2Y<2.44BA/<92Y>272YB/09/8U126;3B4;B3<1207892B6<12.32U3.BA2.=2YB/09/8U612;.U<;?<32:/;?26B4?.A<826A74<2.32>7396276273<23<dB/3<92B89<32;?<24.9<2.=2.39/8784<627892?7W/8U2/;62A3/84/A702=3.8;7U<2BA.8276;3<<;CPDEROIHOGDEGeKf840B9<629/;4?/8U27892;/0/8U2=.32;?<23<@.W702.=2<[4<6626./02@./6;B3<2/84/9<8;702;.2;?<2A078;/8U124B0;/W7;/8U1A3.;<4;/8U12.32?73W<6;/8U2.=243.A62.32/@A3.W/8U2;?<2A3.9B4;/W/;>2.=207892/82<6;7Y0/6?<92B6<2=.327U3/4B0;B3<1?.3;/4B0;B3<126/0W/4B0;B3<12.320B@Y<3/8UCPDNDeGNDREIRgIhKNFGEHMi<;?.962=.32<0/@/87;/8U2.323<9B4/8U2A.;<8;/702/@A74;2;.23<UB07;<92:<;07896̀2.3j3<7;/.82.=28<:2:<;078962.=2;?<267@<2.326/@/0732=B84;/.82;.2.̂6<;2B87W./97Y0<20.662.=2<[/6;/8U2:<;07896;.2@<<;2;?<2].:86?/A2U.702.=28.28<;20.662.=2:<;07896CSKOMRET82/89/W/9B70126.0<2A3.A3/<;.36?/A12A73;8<36?/A124.3A.37;/.812766.4/7;/.812@B8/4/A70/;>12.=2;?<26;7;<̀278/86;3B@<8;70/;>2.327U<84>2.=2;?/626;7;<̀2;?<2=<9<3702U.W<38@<8;12.32782/86;3B@<8;70/;>2.327U<84>2.=2;?<=<9<3702U.W<38@<8;12.32.;?<320<U702<8;/;>CSORNKkNKHIhKNFGEHMT8>2.=2;?<2=.00.:/8UVl<;07896123<U7390<662.=26/m<12:?/4?273<24.8;/UB.B62;.278>2/807892075<26;3<7@123/W<312.32A.8912:?<;?<3A73;/700>2.32<8;/3<0>2:/;?/82;?<2A3._<4;26/;<Cl<;07896123<U7390<662.=26/m<12:?/4?273<2A73;/700>2.32<8;/3<0>2:/;?/82abb2=<<;2.=2;?<2.39/873>2?/U?2:7;<3@7352.=278>2/807892075<126;3<7@123/W<32.32A.8912B80<662/;2/629<;<3@/8<92Y>2;?<26;7;<29<A73;@<8;2.=<8W/3.8@<8;702dB70/;>2;?7;2;?<3<2/628.26B3=74<2.32U3.B89:7;<324.88<4;/.82Y<;:<<82;?<2:<;078927892;?<:7;<32Y.9>C



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���$'()*'+)*',)*'-)* ./0123456789:862;/612;</;60823607=62:;/5>678/08/;6?2;09211@6=;6/309;/1@6:=30293/467908936261=0>6234789:862;/63=06:=309<A=A560=623@6931234612B/>650;/2C>6;9D/;6=;6?=34E./012345>6;/<2;41/556=F659G/>6789:862;/63=06:=309<A=A560=623@6931234612B/>650;/2C>6;9D/;6=;6?=34>69F608/5020/64/?2;0C/306=F6/3D9;=3C/30216HA2190@64/0/;C93/5608/6?;=0/:09=36=F608/67/012346956/55/3092160=608/?;/5/;D209=36=F608/6320A;216;/5=A;:/56=F608/65020/6F;=C6?=11A09=3>69C?29;C/306=;64/50;A:09=3E./012345>6/HA2160=6=;6<;/20/;608236=3/IHA2;0/;62:;/62346/HA2160=6=;61/5560823607=62:;/5693659G/>6789:82;/63=06:=309<A=A560=623@6931234612B/>650;/2C>6;9D/;6=;6?=34623462;/64/0/;C93/460=6J/6/55/3092160=608/?;/5/;D209=36=F608/6320A;216;/5=A;:/56=F608/6K=73589?6256?;=D94/46936L6MMNOPQERSTUVSK=649<>64;/4</>65A:B>6?AC?>6JA114=G/>64;2<6193/>6=;6J1250ERSWXURYXZU[K=6;/0A;36F;=C6264950A;J/46=;60=0211@6210/;/46:=34909=360=626?;/D9=A51@6/\95093<6320A;216=;6210/;/46:=34909=3J@65=C/62:09=36=F6C23EWXR]̂ X]RS_3@6255/CJ1@6=F6C20/;921562J=D/6=;6J/1=7608/65A;F2:/6=F608/612346=;6720/;>693:1A493<>6JA063=0619C90/460=>JA91493<5>6JA1B8/245>6?9/;5>64=:B5>6123493<5>642C5>6720/;72@6=J50;A:09=35>6?2D93<62346;=2472@5>6?=1/5>0=7/;5>6:2J1/5>6?9?/193/5>64;2932</6091/5>62346=08/;6A34/;<;=A3469350211209=35EXÙ [WaZbcdUYReK8/61/<951209D/6J=4@6=F608/6f82;0/;6K=73589?6=F6g/;94923>6h3<82C6f=A30@>6g9:89<23EXÙ [WaZbcS[VZRU[TS[XYiĉU[W]iXY[X_6?/;5=36?;=F/559=3211@6B3=71/4</2J1/69367/0123464/193/209=362346;/5=A;:/6D21A/6255/55C/30>67/01234?;=0/:09=3>67/012346;/50=;209=3623467/012346C909<209=3>62??=930/46?A;5A23060=6L6jEk6=F608/6K=73589??/;5=33/16?=19:@60=6:2;;@6=A06:/;029364A09/568/;/A34/;E6_3@6l;C6=;69349D94A2162??=930/46=3626:=30;2:06J2595582116J/65/1/:0/46:=C?/0909D/1@6A34/;608/6K=73589?6?A;:82593<6?=19:@EXÙ [WaZbc̀SXiY[ecZ[VS[XURmcTYbK8/6g/;949236K=73589?6./012346h3D/30=;@6g2?6:;/20/460=6:=C?1@679086L6jnjno6pqr>6=F608/6s20A;216t/5=A;:/52346u3D9;=3C/30216v;=0/:09=36_:06pgfw6L6jxkEjnjnorE6K8/6K=73589?67/01234693D/30=;@6C2?6956J25/46=3608/s209=3216./012346h3D/30=;@6g2?6=F608/6yEzE6{95862346.91419F/6z/;D9:/>608/6g9:89<236t/5=A;:/6h3F=;C209=3z@50/C6g2??93<6pghthzr6=F608/65020/64/?2;0C/306=F6320A;216;/5=A;:/5>608/65=9156C2?56=F608/65=91:=35/;D209=365/;D9:/>62/;9216?8=0=<;2?8@62346=3I590/6935?/:09=35E`SXiY[ew2346:82;2:0/;9G/46J@608/6?;/5/3:/6=F6720/;620626F;/HA/3:@623464A;209=365A|:9/3060=65A??=;0>623460820A34/;63=;C216:9;:AC5023:/564=/565A??=;0>67/012346D/</0209=36=;62HA209:619F/62346:=CC=31@6;/F/;;/460=62562J=<>6572C?>6=;6C2;58E`SXiY[ecVS}SXYXZU[v12305608206/\89J906242?0209=3560=6211=76</;C93209=362346<;=7086790862061/250608/9;6;==065@50/C5693608/6720/;=;6520A;20/465=9156A34/;63=;C216:=34909=35E~̂���c~���~�����6�/l3909=356</3/;211@>6L6ONME������������������������*���+�*�*��,�� *¡¢�£*¤�£*¥��¥��¥�*(����¥��¥¦K8/6K=73589?6§=2;46l3456082067/01234562;/693495?/352J1/62346F;2<91/6320A;216;/5=A;:/5608206?;=D94/6C23@?AJ19:6J/3/l05>693:1A493<6C2930/323:/6=F6720/;6HA2190@608;=A<863A0;9/306:@:193<623465/49C/3060;2??93<6257/116256̈==46234650=;C720/;6;A3=©6:=30;=1608;=A<860/C?=;2;@6720/;650=;2</>651=76;/1/25/>6234<;=A34720/;6;/:82;</E6h36244909=3>67/0123456?;=D94/6=?/365?2:/ª6?2559D/6=A04==;6;/:;/209=36=??=;0A3909/5ª



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���̂F=9E@ELE@F=;FB;E:C;_E<EC;FB;̀@K:@M<=J;E:C;KF=9CGP<E@F=;<=>;>CPCAFNHC=E;FB=<ELG<A;GC9FLGKC9;FB;E:C;9E<EC;@9;<;H<EECG;FB;N<G<HFL=E;NLDA@K;KF=KCG=;@=;E:C;@=ECGC9E;FB;E:C;:C<AE:J;9<BCEIJ<=>;MC=CG<A;?CAB<GC;FB;E:C;NCFNACR;T:CGCBFGCJ;?@E:;<LE:FG@EI;BGFH;[;ababcdZe;FB;E:C;f<ELG<A;gC9FLGKC9;<=>h=P@GF=HC=E<A;SGFECKE@F=;YKE;d̀ î;[;a]ZRababc;CE;9CjReJ;E:C;TF?=9:@N;UF<G>;8=>9;E:<E;E:@9;<GE@KAC;@9C99C=E@<A;EF;E:C;AF=MWECGH;:C<AE:J;9<BCEIJ;CKF=FH@KJ;<=>;MC=CG<A;?CAB<GC;FB;E:C;NCFNAC;FB;E:C;TF?=9:@N;<=>EF;E:C;BLGE:CG<=KC;FB;E:C;NFA@K@C9;9CE;BFGE:;@=;S<GE;kc;FB;E:C;f<ELG<A;gC9FLGKC9;<=>;h=P@GF=HC=E<A;SGFECKE@F=YKE;d̀ î;[;a]ZRkbk;CE;9CjReRlmnnoppqrmstuvwxyrz{|}~*,641�*�*,72�-�*��}/*�|/*-77-�74�*0�,6�-77-�*��}/*�|/*-7,,�71�*0�,2�-7,,�T:C;NLGNF9C9;FB;E:@9;<GE@KAC;<GC;EF;NGFP@>C;BFG�T:C;NGFECKE@F=J;NGC9CGP<E@F=J;GCNA<KCHC=EJ;NGFNCG;H<@=EC=<=KCJ;GC9EFG<E@F=J;<=>;L9C;@=;<KKFG><=KC;?@E:;E:CK:<G<KECGJ;<><NE<D@A@EIJ;<=>;9E<D@A@EI;FB;E:C;TF?=9:@N�9;?CEA<=>9;@=;FG>CG;EF;NGCPC=E;E:C@G;NFAALE@F=;FGKF=E<H@=<E@F=O;H@=@H@�C;E:C@G;>@9ELGD<=KC;<=>;>@9ELGD<=KC;EF;E:C;=<ELG<A;:<D@E<E;E:CGC@=O;<=>;NGCPC=E><H<MC;BGFH;CGF9@F=J;9@AE<E@F=J;<=>;�FF>@=MRT:C;C=KFLG<MCHC=E;FB;NGFNCG;<=>;GC<9F=<DAC;CKF=FH@K;L9C;FB;?CEA<=>9J;E:C;>@9KFLG<MCHC=E;<=>;A@H@E<E@F=FB;@HNGFNCG;L9CJ;E:C;GC>LKE@F=;FB;8=<=K@<A;DLG>C=9;@HNGFNCG;L9C9;@HNF9C;F=;E:C;KFHHL=@EIJ;E:CH<@=EC=<=KC;FB;:<GHF=@FL9;<=>;KFHN<E@DAC;A<=>;L9C;D<A<=KC;?@E:@=;E:C;TF?=9:@NJ;<=>;E:C;NGCPC=E@F=;FB=L@9<=KC;KF=>@E@F=9;E:<E;<G@9C;?@E:;E:C;@=>@9KG@H@=<EC;>CPCAFNHC=E;FB;?CEA<=>9RT:C;KFFG>@=<E@F=;?@E:J;<=>;9LNNFGE;BFGJ;E:C;C=BFGKCHC=E;FB;<NNA@K<DAC;BC>CG<AJ;9E<ECJ;<=>;KFL=EI;9E<ELEC9JFG>@=<=KC9J;<=>;GCMLA<E@F=9J;@=KAL>@=MJ;DLE;=FE;A@H@EC>;EF�S<GE;abaJ;�CEA<=>;SGFECKE@F=;FB;E:C;f<ELG<A;gC9FLGKC9;<=>;h=P@GF=HC=E<A;SGFECKE@F=;YKE;d̀ î[;a]ZRababk;CE;9CjReJ;C=BFGKC>;DI;E:C;_E<EC;�CN<GEHC=E;FB;h=P@GF=HC=E<A;�L<A@EIO;<=>S<GE;�k;FB;E:C;f<ELG<A;gC9FLGKC9;<=>;h=P@GF=HC=E<A;SGFECKE@F=;YKE;d̀ î;[;a]ZR�kbk;CE;9CjReJ;C=BFGKC>DI;E:C;TF?=9:@NRF̂HNA@<=KC;?@E:;S<GE;kc;FB;E:C;f<ELG<A;gC9FLGKC9;<=>;h=P@GF=HC=E<A;SGFECKE@F=;YKE;d̀ î;[;a]ZRkcbk;CE9CjReJ;?:@K:;@HNF9C9;<;>LEI;F=;MFPCG=HC=E;<MC=K@C9;<=>;NG@P<EC;@=>@P@>L<A9;<=>;FGM<=@�<E@F=9;EF;NGCPC=E;FGH@=@H@�C;E:C;NFAALE@F=J;@HN<@GHC=E;FG;>C9EGLKE@F=;FB;E:C;=<ELG<A;GC9FLGKC9;E:<E;@9;A@XCAI;EF;DC;K<L9C>;DIE:C@G;<KE@P@E@C9RT:C;C9E<DA@9:HC=E;FB;9E<=><G>9;<=>;NGFKC>LGC9;BFG;E:C;GCP@C?;<=>;GCMLA<E@F=;FB;E:C;L9C;FB;?CEA<=>9RT:C;@99L<=KC;FB;?CEA<=>;L9C;NCGH@E9;BFG;<NNGFPC>;<KE@P@E@C9RY;NGFKC>LGC;BFG;<HC=>@=M;?CEA<=>;L9C;NCGH@E9RY;NGFKC>LGC;BFG;<NNC<A@=M;>CK@9@F=9RT:C;C9E<DA@9:HC=E;FB;C=BFGKCHC=E;NGFKC>LGC9;<=>;NC=<AE@C9;BFG;E:C;P@FA<E@F=;FB;E:@9;<GE@KACRY99LG<=KC;E:<E;E:C;G@M:E;EF;GC<9F=<DAC;L9C;FB;NG@P<EC;NGFNCGEI;@9;H<@=E<@=C>R



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���$'()*'+)*',)*'-)*'.)*'/)*'0)*'1)*'2)*3455677894:;<=>?@;A4=<B4;<CDEF;G;<?9HIJ-.*2KLMN*O*2PQR2KS*TU-V*WJV*XPPXRPLN*YRXPRXPPXS*TU-V*WJV*XP22RPMN*ZR2QRXP22[\]̂_̀âaba]_̂cd̂êbfcge_fc]̂cd̂_̀fĥei_fjgak̂_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂oep̂jcooa]jâêjfbfĝej_fc]̂dcîennicnife_âiagfadkf]jgqrf]ŝf]tq]j_fbâiagfadûv]̂ej_fc]̂q]raî_̀fĥei_fjgâoep̂wâwicqs̀_̂f]̂_̀âjfijqf_̂jcqi_̂dcî_̀âjcq]_pul̀âjcqi_̂̀eĥtqifhrfj_fc]̂_ĉiah_ief]̂_̀âbfcge_fc]̂e]r̂_ĉiaxqfiâjcongfe]jâmf_̀_̂̀fĥei_fjgaû\]̂errf_fc]̂_ce]p̂c_̀aîiagfad̂sie]_ar̂q]raî_̀fĥei_fjgak̂_̀âjcqi_̂oep̂fonchâêjfbfĝy]âcd̂]c_̂ociâ_̀e]̂z{|k|||̂nairep̂cd̂bfcge_fc]ûv̂naihc]̂m̀ ĉbfcge_aĥe]̂ciraîcd̂_̀âjcqi_̂fĥhqwtaj_̂_ĉêjfbfĝy]â]c_̂_ĉa}jaar̂z{|k|||dcîaej̀ r̂ep̂cd̂bfcge_fc]uv̂naihc]̂m̀ ĉbfcge_aĥ_̀fĥei_fjgâfĥsqfg_p̂cd̂êofhraoae]cik̂nq]fh̀ewgâwp̂êy]âcd̂]c_̂ociâ_̀e]̂z~k�||uv̂naihc]̂m̀ ĉmfggdqggp̂cîiaj�gahhgp̂bfcge_aĥêjc]rf_fc]̂cîgfof_e_fc]̂f]̂ênaiof_̂fhhqar̂wp̂_̀âlcm]h̀fnq]raî_̀fĥei_fjgak̂cîêjcincie_âc�jaîm̀ ĉ̀ eĥ�]cmgarsâcd̂cîfĥiahnc]hfwgâdcîêbfcge_fc]k̂fĥsqfg_p̂cd̂eofhraoae]cik̂nq]fh̀ewgâwp̂êy]âcd̂]c_̂gahĥ_̀e]̂z~k�||̂]cîociâ_̀e]̂z~�k|||̂naîrep̂cd̂bfcge_fc]k̂cîwpfonifhc]oa]_̂dcî]c_̂ociâ_̀e]̂c]âpaeik̂cîwc_̀ûv̂naihc]̂m̀ ĉbfcge_aĥ_̀fĥei_fjgâêhajc]r̂cihqwhaxqa]_̂_foâfĥsqfg_p̂cd̂êdagc]pk̂nq]fh̀ewgâwp̂êy]âcd̂]c_̂ociâ_̀e]̂z�|k|||̂dcîaej̀ r̂ep̂cd̂bfcge_fc]kcîwp̂fonifhc]oa]_̂dcî]c_̂ociâ_̀e]̂_mĉpaeihk̂cîwc_̀u\]̂errf_fc]̂_ĉ_̀âna]eg_faĥnicbfrar̂q]raîhqwhaj_fc]ĥ���k̂���k̂e]r̂�j�̂cd̂_̀fĥhaj_fc]k̂_̀âjcqi_̂oep̂ciraiênaihc]̂m̀ ĉbfcge_aĥ_̀fĥei_fjgâ_ĉiah_ciâeĥ]aeigp̂eĥnchhfwgâ_̀âma_ge]r̂_̀e_̂meĥe�aj_ar̂wp̂_̀abfcge_fc]̂_ĉf_ĥcifsf]eĝjc]rf_fc]̂fooarfe_agp̂wadciâ_̀âbfcge_fc]ûl̀âiah_cie_fc]̂oep̂f]jgqrâ_̀âiaocbegcd̂ygĝoe_aifeĝranchf_ar̂f]̂_̀âma_ge]r̂cî_̀âiangejaoa]_̂cd̂hcfgk̂he]rk̂cîof]aieghu� à]abaîe]p̂mci�̂fĥnaidcioar̂jc]_ieip̂_ĉ_̀ânicbfhfc]̂cd̂_̀fĥei_fjgâcîcd̂êjc]rf_fc]̂ha_̂dci_̀ f̂]̂ema_ge]r̂qhânaiof_k̂_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂�e]esaîcî̀fĥesa]_̂h̀egĝciraî_̀âmci�̂_ĉjaehâwp̂]c_fjâf]̂mif_f]shaibar̂c]̂e]p̂naihc]ĥa]sesar̂f]̂_̀ârcf]ŝcîjeqhf]ŝhqj̀ m̂ci�̂_ĉwânaidcioark̂e]r̂e]p̂hqj̀ n̂aihc]hh̀eggk̂qnc]̂iajafn_̂cd̂_̀âciraik̂dci_̀mf_̀ĥ_cn̂hqj̀ m̂ci�̂q]_fĝeq_̀cif�ar̂wp̂_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂�e]esaîcî̀fhesa]_̂_ĉnicjaarû\]̂errf_fc]k̂fd̂ênaihc]̂ej_ĥf]̂bfcge_fc]̂cd̂_̀fĥei_fjgâ_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂oep̂iadqhâêjai_fyje_acd̂cjjqne]jp̂cîc_̀aîjc]h_iqj_fc]̂naiof_ĥiage_ar̂_ĉ_̀ânictaj_̂m̀a]abaî_̀aiâfĥdefgqiâ_ĉjcongp̂mf_̀_̀ânicbfhfc]ĥcd̂_̀fĥei_fjgaul̀â�fiaj_cîcd̂�cooq]f_p̂�ge]]f]ŝe]r̂�abagcnoa]_̂cî̀fĥesa]_̂h̀egĝ̀ebâeq_̀cif_p̂q]raî_̀fĥei_fjgâ_ca]_aîqnc]̂nifbe_agp̂cm]ar̂ge]r̂dcî_̀ânqinchâcd̂naidciof]ŝ_̀âlcm]h̀fn�ĥrq_faĥq]raî_̀fĥei_fjgâe]roep̂_e�âcîjeqhâ_ĉwâoerâhqj̀ â}eof]e_fc]hk̂hqibapĥcîheongf]sĥeĥeiâraaoar̂]ajahheipu�em̂a]dcijaoa]_̂c�jfegĥcîc_̀aîc�jfegĥ èbf]ŝ_̀âncgfjâncmaîh̀egĝ̀ebâeq_̀cif_p̂_ĉehhfh_̂_̀a�anei_oa]_̂cd̂�cooq]f_p̂�ge]]f]ŝe]r̂�abagcnoa]_̂f]̂_̀âa]dcijaoa]_̂cd̂_̀fĥei_fjgau\]̂_̀âaba]_̂cd̂êbfcge_fc]̂cd̂_̀fĥei_fjgak̂_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂�ceir̂h̀egĝ̀ebâ_̀âncmaî_ĉciraîma_ge]riah_cie_fc]̂dcî_̀âreoesar̂cîrah_icpar̂ma_ge]r̂eiaêwp̂_̀âcm]aîcd̂_̀ânicnai_p̂e�aj_ar̂cî_̀ânaihc]cîesa]_̂iahnc]hfwgâdcî_̀âbfcge_fc]û\d̂_̀âcm]aîcînaihc]̂iahnc]hfwgârcaĥ]c_̂jconga_â_̀âiah_cie_fc]oaehqiaĥmf_̀f]̂_̀âciraiar̂naifcr̂cd̂_foak̂_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂�ceir̂oep̂ciraî_̀âe�aj_ar̂ma_ge]r̂iah_ciar_ĉf_ĥnifcîjc]rf_fc]̂e]r�cîjiae_âcîiah_ciâc_̀aîma_ge]rĥdcî_̀ânqinchâcd̂c�ha__f]ŝgchhaĥhqh_ef]areĥêiahqg_̂cd̂_̀fĥbfcge_fc]ûl̀âcm]aîcîc_̀aînaihc]̂iahnc]hfwgâdcî_̀âcifsf]eĝbfcge_fc]̂h̀egĝwaiahnc]hfwgâ_ĉ_̀âlcm]h̀fn̂dcî_̀âdqgĝjch_̂cd̂egĝhqj̀ îaoarfeĝej_fbf_pu3455675�94��@A?@<�4<D<FD<CDEG@<�4>D?A�4�A;A4=<B4A?E�F?�E;A9HIJ-.*2KLMN*O*2PQRKS*TU-V*WJV*XPPXRPLN*YRXPRXPPXS*TU-V*WJV*XP22RPMN*ZR2QRXP22[�qfgrf]ŝhf_aĥcîgc_hk̂qhaĥe]r̂h_iqj_qiaĥgemdqggp̂a}fh_f]ŝc]̂�an_aowaî~k̂{��{k̂h̀egĝwâhqwtaj_̂_ĉ_̀aiaxqfiaoa]_ĥcd̂_̀fĥei_fjgak̂a}jan_̂eĥdcggcmh�v]p̂ej_fbf_pk̂h_iqj_qiak̂cîqhâgemdqggp̂a}fh_f]ŝnifcî_ĉ�an_aowaî~k̂{��{k̂wq_̂]c_̂f]̂jc]dciof_p̂mf_̀ _̂̀anicbfhfc]ĥcd̂_̀fĥei_fjgak̂oep̂wâjc]_f]qark̂oef]_ef]ar̂e]r̂cnaie_arû�ĉ]c]jc]dciof]ŝej_fbf_pk̂h_iqj_qiacîqhâh̀egĝwâa]geisar̂cîf]jiaehar̂cîa}_a]rar̂_ĉcjjqnp̂êsiae_aîeiaêcd̂ge]r̂_̀e]̂meĥcjjqnfar̂e_̂_̀a



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���̂;?6?P8[;:>98;<8RQQ2:LKA_̀aabcacd̀efghijkl̀gmnophq̀khrmhnfst̀upldvwxyz*+{|/}*~*+�0�0}*��y.*�x.*(��(��|}*��(��(��(�*��y.*�x.*(�++��/}*,�+0�(�++�YJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q86K8:8PM69285;85J28L;4:56;?8;<8I25L:?9K86?85J28Y;I?KJ6QA8YJ28H:Q8KJ:LL8O2MK2986?85J28:9H6?6K5>:56;?8;<85J6K8:>564L28:?98ZJ:Q52>8��G8R>564L28�AYJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:QG85;P25J2>8I65J8:LL82TQL:?:5;>S8H:552>85J2>2;?8:?98:55:4J2985J2>25;G8:KH:S8O28:H2?92985J>;MPJ85J28I25L:?9872>6N4:56;?8:?9892L6?2:56;?8Q>;42KKG86K8J2>2OS8:9;Q5298OS8>2<2>2?42:?98924L:>2985;8O28Q:>58;<85J6K8:>564L2A8YJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q8KJ:LL8O28;?8NL286?85J2�2Q:>5H2?58;<8Z;HHM?65S8]L:??6?P8:?98�272L;QH2?5AYJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q8KJ:LL8K2>728:K8:8P2?2>:L8PM6928<;>85J28L;4:56;?8;<8Q>;5245298I25L:?9KAYJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q89;2K8?;584>2:528:?S8L2P:LLS82?<;>42:OL28Q>2KMHQ56;?K8>2P:>96?PIJ25J2>8Q>;Q2>5S85J:586K8;>86K8?;586?4LM9298;?85J286?72?5;>S8H:Q86K8;>86K8?;586?8<:458:8I25L:?9A�:Q8:H2?9H2?58Q>;42KK�R?S84J:?P285;85J28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:QG8:QQ>;7298OS85J28�6>245;>8;<8Z;HHM?65S8]L:??6?P:?98�272L;QH2?585J>;MPJ872>6N4:56;?8;>892L6?2:56;?G8KJ:LL8O28:992985;85J28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>SH:Q8;?8:?8:??M:L8O:K6KAYJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8KJ:LL82?KM>285J:582:4J8>24;>9298;I?2>8;<8Q>;Q2>5S8;?85J28Q>;Q2>5S85:T8>;LL8KJ:LL8O2?;56N298;<8:?S8:H2?9H2?585;85J28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q8;?8:?8:??M:L8O:K6KA8YJ28?;56428KJ:LL6?4LM9285J28<;LL;I6?P86?<;>H:56;?�YJ28H:QK8J:728O22?8:H2?929AYJ28L;4:56;?85;8>2762I85J28H:QK8KJ:LL8O286?964:529AYJ28;I?2>�K8Q>;Q2>5S8H:S8O2892K6P?:5298:K8:8I25L:?98;?85J286?72?5;>S8H:QAYJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8J:K8:?8;>96?:?428>2PML:56?P8I25L:?9KAYJ286?72?5;>S8H:Q89;2K8?;58?242KK:>6LS86?4LM928:LL8;<85J28I25L:?9K8I65J6?85J28Y;I?KJ6Q85J:58H:SO28KMO�24585;85J6K8:>564L2A_̀aabcaad̀�mnophq̀qmokhmpnkfh̀phq̀rmsk��pnkfhdvwxyz*+{|/}*~*+�0���*��y.*�x.*(��(��|}*��(��(��(�*��y.*�x.*(�++��/}*,�+0�(�++�YJ28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?986?72?5;>S8H:Q8KJ:LL8O287:L69:52985J>;MPJ85J28I25L:?9892L6?2:56;?8Q>;42KK8;>85J28I25L:?972>6N4:56;?8Q>;42KKA8YJ28I25L:?9892L6?2:56;?8Q>;42KK8KJ:LL8O28MK2985;82K5:OL6KJ85J28:45M:L8O;M?9:>62K8;<8I25L:?9KOS85J28Y;I?KJ6Q82?76>;?H2?5:L84;?KML5:?5A8YJ28I25L:?9872>6N4:56;?8Q>;42KK8KJ:LL8O28MK2985;872>6<S85J2O;M?9:>62K8;<8I25L:?9K85J>;MPJ85J28>2762I8OS85J28Y;I?KJ6Q82?76>;?H2?5:L84;?KML5:?58;<8:8I25L:?9892L6?2:56;?Q>2Q:>298OS8:8�M:L6N298Q>;<2KK6;?:L8;>8I25L:?984;?KML5:?5A]>6;>85;86KKM:?428;<8:8OM6L96?P8Q2>H658;>8L:?989272L;QH2?58:QQ>;7:LG85J28�6>245;>8;<8Z;HHM?65S8]L:??6?P8:?9�272L;QH2?58KJ:LL89252>H6?285J28?242KK65S8<;>82K5:OL6KJ6?P85J28O;M?9:>S8;<8I25L:?9K8O:K298;?85J28Q>;T6H65S8:?9>2L:56;?KJ6Q8;<85J28Q>;�24585;8I25L:?9K8KJ;I?8;?85J28Y;I?KJ6Q8I25L:?98H:QA�25L:?9892L6?2:56;?8Q>;42KKA



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���̂:<89B?<F7:K7;YBF<B?R7IHBAJB?RFU78@9]B?R7A:<FU7@CC;FF:9=7F<9HC<H9;FU7@?J7:<D;97F<9HC<H9;FV6?=7?:<@IA;7G@?ZG@J;7:97?@<H9@A7K;@<H9;F7@A:?R7<D;7FHF8;C<;J7>;<A@?JFVMD;789:8;9<=7I:H?J@9B;F7FD@AA7I;7CA;@9A=7_@RR;J7:97F<@];J789B:97<:7<D;7̀;AJ7B?S;F<BR@<B:?Va8:?79;C;BSB?R7@7C:G8A;<;7@88ABC@<B:?U7<D;7O;8@9<G;?<7:K7P:GGH?B<=7QA@??B?R7@?J7O;S;A:8G;?<7FD@AA<9@?FGB<7<D;79;bH;F<7<:7<D;7M:>?FDB87;?SB9:?G;?<@A7C:?FHA<@?<7K:97@7̀;AJ7B?S;F<BR@<B:?V7c?7<D;7;S;?<<D@<7>;@<D;97C:?JB<B:?F789:DBIB<7<D;7M:>?FDB87;?SB9:?G;?<@A7C:?FHA<@?<7K9:G7C:?JHC<B?R7@7<D:9:HRD;̀AJ7B?S;F<BR@<B:?7B?CAHJB?R7<D;7;S@AH@<B:?7:K7S;R;<@<B:?U7F:BAU7@?J7D=J9:A:R=U7<D;7@88ABC@<B:?7@?J7K;;7>BAAI;7D;AJ7H?<BA7FHCD7<BG;7<D@<7<D;79;SB;>7C@?7I;7C:?JHC<;JVcJ;?<B̀C@<B:?U7_@RRB?RU7:97F<@]B?R7:K7<D;7>;<A@?J7I:H?J@9B;F7B?7<D;7̀;AJ7FD@AA7I;7C:G8A;<;J7I=7<D;M:>?FDB87;?SB9:?G;?<@A7C:?FHA<@?<7JH9B?R7@7̀;AJ7B?S;F<BR@<B:?V76?7@9CZG@87C:G8@<BIA;7JBRB<@A7C:8=7:K<D;7J;AB?;@<;J7>;<A@?J7I:H?J@9=7FD@AA7I;789:SBJ;J7<:7<D;7OB9;C<:97:K7P:GGH?B<=7QA@??B?R7@?JO;S;A:8G;?<Vd;<A@?J7J;AB?;@<B:?F7C:G8A;<;J7I=7<D;7M:>?FDB87;?SB9:?G;?<@A7C:?FHA<@?<7FD@AA7I;7S@ABJ7K:97@78;9B:J:K7<D9;;7=;@9F7K9:G7<D;7J@<;7:K7<D;7J;AB?;@<B:?79;8:9<Vc?7J;AB?;@<B?R7>;<A@?J7I:H?J@9B;FU7@AA7J;AB?;@<B:?F7FD@AA7@88A=7<D;7<;CD?BC@A7>;<A@?J7J;AB?;@<B:?F<@?J@9JF7F;<7K:9<D7B?7<D;7aVeV769G=7P:98F7:K7X?RB?;;9FU7f@?H@9=7ghij7d;<A@?J7O;AB?;@<B:?7k@?H@AU<;CD?BC@A79;8:9<7=ZijZgU7@?J7@889:89B@<;79;RB:?@A7aVeV769G=7P:98F7:K7X?RB?;;9F7FH88A;G;?<FVd;<A@?JF7H?J;97<D;7[H9BFJBC<B:?7:K7<D;7J;8@9<G;?<7:K7;?SB9:?G;?<@A7bH@AB<=7G@=7?;;J7<:7D@S;7<D;J;AB?;@<B:?79;SB;>;J7@?J7@889:S;J7I=79;89;F;?<@<BS;F7:K7<D;7F<@<;Vd;<A@?J7S;9B̀C@<B:?789:C;FFV6789:8;9<=7:>?;97:97@?7@88ABC@?<7>B<D7<D;789:8;9<=7:>?;9EF7>9B<<;?78;9GBFFB:?7FD@AA7FHIGB<7@7>;<A@?JS;9B̀C@<B:?7@88ABC@<B:?7@?J7K;;7@H<D:9BL;J7I=7<D;7M:>?FDB87N:@9J7<:7<D;7O;8@9<G;?<7:K7P:GGH?B<=QA@??B?R7@?J7O;S;A:8G;?<7>B<D7<D;7K:AA:>B?R7G@<;9B@AT67FH9S;=U7FB<;78A@?U7:978A:<78A@?7<D@<7B?CAHJ;F7<D;7K:AA:>B?R7B?K:9G@<B:?TQ9:8;9<=7AB?;F7@?J7JBG;?FB:?FVW:9<D7@99:>7@?J7FC@A;VXYBF<B?R7<:8:R9@8D=7C:?<:H9F7J;8BC<;J7@<7<>:ZK::<7B?<;9S@AFVMD;7I:H?J@9=7:K7@AA7>;<A@?JF7BJ;?<B̀;J7:?7<D;7FB<;V6J[@C;?<7@?J7:?ZFB<;79:@JF\79@BA9:@JF\7@?J7F<9;@GFU7A@];FU7@?J78:?JFV:̂:<89B?<F7:K7;YBF<B?R7IHBAJB?RFU78@9]B?R7A:<FU7@CC;FF:9=7F<9HC<H9;FU7@?J7:<D;97F<9HC<H9;FVeH9S;=;J78:B?<F7:K79;K;9;?C;V



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� $��̂Z<HBB><=H<>KB<OF=OBF>;AM:B_<Q?:<@B<=@IBFTBE<HF=C<>KB<IG@̀BQ><IM>BNaO=:<FBQBMTM:J<?<Q=COAB>B<?OOAMQ?>M=:U<>KB<SBO?F>CB:><=H<[=CCG:M>;<VA?::M:J<?:E<SBTBA=OCB:><IK?AA>F?:ICM><>KB<FBbGBI><>=<>KB<P=L:IKMO<B:TMF=:CB:>?A<Q=:IGA>?:><H=F<?<XBAE<M:TBI>MJ?>M=:N<c:<>KB<BTB:>>K?><LB?>KBF<Q=:EM>M=:I<OF=KM@M><>KB<P=L:IKMO<B:TMF=:CB:>?A<Q=:IGA>?:><HF=C<Q=:EGQ>M:J<?<>K=F=GJKXBAE<M:TBI>MJ?>M=:<M:QAGEM:J<>KB<BT?AG?>M=:<=H<TBJB>?>M=:U<I=MAU<?:E<K;EF=A=J;U<>KB<?OOAMQ?>M=:<?:E<HBB<LMAA@B<KBAE<G:>MA<IGQK<>MCB<>K?><>KB<FBTMBL<Q?:<@B<Q=:EGQ>BENdeffghfijeklmnopeqremsoeotunvqtwotmxyezqwwnppnqtj{|}~�*.�41�*�*.�2�.3�*��~)*�})*+��+��4�*5�+��+��+�*��~)*�})*+�..��1�*0�.2�+�..�PKB<B:TMF=:CB:>?A<Q=CCMIIM=:<QFB?>BE<OGFIG?:><>=<[K?O>BF<�U<9F>MQAB<��U<SMTMIM=:<�U<IK?AA<OBFH=FC<>KB<H=AA=LM:JEG>MBI<LM>K<FBJ?FE<>=<>KMI<?F>MQABR9ETMIB<>KB<P=L:IKMO<�=?FEU<VA?::M:J<[=CCMIIM=:U<?:E<SMFBQ>=F<=H<[=CCG:M>;<VA?::M:J<?:E<SBTBA=OCB:>U?I<:BQBII?F;U<=:<LB>A?:E<GIB<OBFCM>IU<?OOB?AI<=H<LB>A?:E<GIB<OBFCM>IU<?:E<CM>MJ?>M=:<OA?:IN�BFTB<M:<?:<?ETMI=F;<F=AB<M:<IB>>M:J<O=AMQ;<JGMEBAM:BI<=:<LB>A?:E<MIIGBI<M:<>KB<P=L:IKMONcEB:>MH;<Q=:�MQ>I<?:E<OF=O=IB<I=AG>M=:I<>=<FBI=ATB<Q=:�MQ>I<FBJ?FEM:J<LB>A?:E<OF=>BQ>M=:<@;<OFBIB:>P=L:IKMO<=FEM:?:QBIU<P=L:IKMO<=OBF?>M:J<OF=QBEGFBIU<?:E<P=L:IKMO<?Q>MTM>MBINcEB:>MH;<?:E<OF=O=IB<I=AG>M=:I<>=<OF=@ABCI<?II=QM?>BE<LM>K<LB>A?:E<C?:?JBCB:>NVF=TMEB<FBQ=CCB:E?>M=:I<>=<>KB<SMFBQ>=F<=H<[=CCG:M>;<VA?::M:J<?:E<SBTBA=OCB:><=:<C?O<?ECM:MI>F?>M=:N9IIMI><A?:E=L:BFI<LK=<?FB<M:>BFBI>BE<M:<>KB<T=AG:>?F;<OF=>BQ>M=:<=H<LB>A?:EINVF=C=>B<LB>A?:E<BEGQ?>M=:<?><?AA<ABTBAIN<SBTBA=O<BEGQ?>M=:<OF=JF?CI<H=F<>KB<OG@AMQ<?:E<H=F<P=L:IKMOIQK==AIN<PKB<OF=JF?C<IK=GAE<OF=C=>B<>KB<T?AGBI<=H<LB>A?:EI<?:E<?L?FB:BII<=H<>KB<K?�?FEI<?:E<>KFB?>I<>=LB>A?:EIN<PKB<OF=JF?C<IK=GAE<@B<O?F>MQGA?FA;<>?FJB>BE<>=<A?:E=L:BFI<LM>K<LB>A?:EI<?:E<BCOK?IM�B<K=L@BI><>=<OF=>BQ><LB>A?:E<T?AGBI<=:<>KBMF<OF=OBF>;N[==FEM:?>B<?<T=AG:>?F;<LB>A?:E<I>BL?FEIKMO<OF=JF?CN<SBTBA=O<?:<?E=O>D?DLB>A?:E<OF=JF?C<H=F<M:>BFBI>BEQM>M�B:I<>=<O?F>MQMO?>B<C=FB<EMFBQ>A;<M:<OFBIBFT?>M=:<=H<IOBQMXQ<LB>A?:EINdeffghf�jemsvql�sedeffgh��je��opovuo��k�������efje�ovwnm ¡¢¡£¤¥¢¦¤§£̈£§£©ª£«¤¬£¡¥¢©­¤®£§̄°¡±²¤³́ µ¤¶·̧¹¶º¶º»¤£¡¤±£¼¹deffgh�hje½zmnunmnopevo¾lnvnt�exe¿omyxt�elpoeÀovwnmj



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ���$'()*'+)*',)*'-)*'.)*'/)*'0)*'()*'+)*',)*'-)*'.)*'/)*'1)*'2)*03*43*53*'6)*'(7)*'0)*89:;<*(61-=*>*(7.?2@*AB;3*C:3*+77+?71=*2?+7?+77+@*AB;3*C:3*+7((?7-=*,?(.?+7((DEFGHIJKKGLMGNOKJPQNKGQRSGJOTGUMSHROGFRGVROWNVFGJOTGJVFXYXFTGKXHFMWGLMKRPGPXFIXOGJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOWGPXFIRNFZSHFGRLFJXOXO[GJGPMFKJOWGNHMGUMS\XFGXOGJVVRSWJOVMGPXFIGFIMGSM]NXSM\MOFHGRQGFIXHGWXYXHXRÔG_VFXYXFXMHG[RYMSOMWLTGFIXHGHMVFXROGXOVKNWM̀GLNFGJSMGORFGKX\XFMWGFR̀GFIMGQRKKRPXO[abMURHXFXO[̀GUMS\XFFXO[GFIMGUKJVM\MOFGRQGZKKG\JFMSXJKGRSG\JXOFJXOXO[GZKKG\JFMSXJKGXOGJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴcSJWXO[GXOGJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴbSMW[XO[̀GSM\RYXO[̀GRSGUMS\XFFXO[GFIMGSM\RYJKGRQGHRXKGRSG\XOMSJKHGQSR\GJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴbSJXOXO[̀GRSGVJNHXO[GFRGLMGWSJXOMẀGJOTGPJFMSGXOFRGRSGQSR\GJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴdROHFSNVFXO[̀GRUMSJFXO[̀GRSG\JXOFJXOXO[GJOTGNHMGRSGWMYMKRU\MOFGXOGJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴbXYMSFXO[̀GRLHFSNVFXO[GRSGX\UMWXO[GFIMGeRPGRQGPJFMSGXOFRGJGUSRFMVFMWGPMFKJOŴfghhijkhlgmnopqpoprsgtuogvrwxpvptygzg{rv|pol89:;<*(61-=*>*(7.?1@*AB;3*C:3*+77+?71=*2?+7?+77+@*AB;3*C:3*+7((?7-=*,?(.?+7((D}IMGQRKKRPXO[GNHMHGHIJKKGLMGJKKRPMWGXOGJGPMFKJOWGPXFIRNFGJGUMS\XFGHNL~MVFGFRGRFIMSGKJPHGRQGFIXHGHFJFMGJOWGFIMRPOMS�HGSM[NKJFXROa�XHIXO[̀GFSJUUXO[GRSGINOFXO[̂�PX\\XO[GRSGLRJFXO[̂�X�XO[̂cSJ�XO[GRQGJOX\JKĤ�JS\XO[̀GIRSFXVNKFNSM̀GHXKYXVNKFNSM̀GKN\LMSXO[̀GJOWGSJOVIXO[GJVFXYXFXMH̀GXOVKNWXO[GUKRPXO[̀GXSSX[JFXRÒXSSX[JFXROGWXFVIXO[̀GHMMWXO[̀GVNKFXYJFXO[̀G\XORSGWSJXOJ[M̀GIJSYMHFXO[GQRSGFIMGUSRWNVFXROGRQGQRRẀGZLMS̀GJOWQRSMHFGUSRWNVFH̀GRSGNUKJOWGHRXKGJOWGPJFMSGVROHMSYJFXROGUSJVFXVMĤG_GPMFKJOWGJKFMSMWGNOWMSGFIXHGJSFXVKMHIJKKGORFGLMGNHMWGQRSGJGUNSURHMGRFIMSGFIJOGJGUNSURHMGWMHVSXLMWGXOGFIXHGHNLHMVFXROGPXFIRNFGJGUMS\XFQSR\GFIMG}RPOHIXÛ_OGJVFXYXFTGXOGJGPMFKJOWGFIJFGPJHGM�MVFXYMKTGWSJXOMWGQRSGQJS\XO[GLMQRSMG�VFRLMSG�̀G����̀GJOWGFIJFGROGJOWJQFMSG�VFRLMSG�̀G����̀GIJHGVROFXONMWGFRGLMGM�MVFXYMKTGWSJXOMWGJHGUJSFGRQGJOGRO[RXO[GQJS\XO[GRUMSJFXRÔ�JXOFMOJOVMGRSGRUMSJFXROGRQGHMSYXVMJLKMGHFSNVFNSMHGXOGM�XHFMOVMGROG�VFRLMSG�̀G����̀GRSGVROHFSNVFMWUNSHNJOFGFRGUJSFG���̀GRQGFIMG�JFNSJKG�MHRNSVMHGJOWG�OYXSRO\MOFJKG�SRFMVFXROG_VFG��d�G�G���̂�����GMFHM]̂�̂dROHFSNVFXROGRSG\JXOFMOJOVMGRQGQJS\GRSGHFRV�GUROWĤ�JXOFMOJOVM̀GRUMSJFXRÒGRSGX\USRYM\MOFGPIXVIGXOVKNWMHGFIMGHFSJX[IFMOXO[̀GPXWMOXO[GRSGWMMUMOXO[GRQFIMGQRKKRPXO[GPIXVIGXHGOMVMHHJSTGQRSGFIMGUSRWNVFXROGRSGIJSYMHFXO[GRQGJ[SXVNKFNSJKGUSRWNVFHa_OGM�XHFXO[GUSXYJFMGJ[SXVNKFNSJKGWSJXÔ}IJFGURSFXROGRQGJGWSJXOGKM[JKKTGMHFJLKXHIMWGUNSHNJOFGFRGFIMGWSJXOGVRWMGRQG����G��d�G�G���̂�GMFGHM]̂�PIXVIGIJHGLMMOGVROHFSNVFMWGRSGX\USRYMWGQRSGWSJXOJ[MGUNSURHMĤ_GWSJXOGVROHFSNVFMWGUNSHNJOFGFRGRFIMSGUSRYXHXROHGRQGUJSFG���GRQGFIMG�JFNSJKG�MHRNSVMHGJOW�MFKJOWG�SRFMVFXROG_VFG��d�G�G���̂�����GMFGHM]̂�̂dROHFSNVFXROGRSG\JXOFMOJOVMGRQGQJS\GSRJWH̀GQRSMHFGSRJWH̀GRSGFM\URSJSTGSRJWHGQRSG\RYXO[G\XOXO[GRSQRSMHFSTGM]NXU\MOF̀GXQGFIMGSRJWHGJSMGVROHFSNVFMWGJOWG\JXOFJXOMWGXOGJG\JOOMSGFRGMOHNSMGFIJFGJWYMSHMM�MVFGROGFIMGPMFKJOWGPXKKGLMGRFIMSPXHMG\XOX\X�MŴ



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����$'(()*'(+)*'(,)*'(-)*'(.)*'(/)*01*21*31*'(4)*01* (1*+1*21* (1*31*'(5)*6789:8;<=:<><??87@=AB7=CD<=E7BFG>C9B:=8:F=D87H<?C9:;=BA=8;79>GICG78I=E7BFG>C?=9A=CD<=J<CI8:F=9?=BJ:<FK@=8=E<7?B:=JDB=9?=<:;8;<F=9:=>BLL<7>98I=A87L9:;=8:F=CD<=I8:F=9?=CB=K<=G?<F=AB7=CD<=E7BFG>C9B:=8:FD87H<?C9:;=BA=8;79>GICG78I=E7BFG>C?M=NO><EC=8?=BCD<7J9?<=E7BH9F<F=9:=E87C=PQP=BA=CD<=R8CG78I=S<?BG7><?8:F=N:H97B:L<:C8I=T7BC<>C9B:=U>C=VWXY=Z=P[\MPQPQ]=<C=?<̂M_̀=8=J<CI8:F=9LE7BH<F=G:F<7=CD9?=?GK?<>C9B:8AC<7=a>CBK<7=]̀=]bcQ̀=?D8II=:BC=K<=G?<F=AB7=:B:A87L9:;=EG7EB?<?=J9CDBGC=8=E<7L9C=A7BL=CD<=?C8C<F<E87CL<:C=BA=<:H97B:L<:C8I=̂G8I9C@M=dD9?=?GK?<>C9B:=?D8II=:BC=8EEI@=CB=8=J<CI8:F=JD9>D=9?=>B:C9;GBG?CB=8=I8e<=B7=?C7<8L̀=B7=CB=8=C79KGC87@=BA=8=I8e<=B7=?C7<8L̀=B7=CB=8=J<CI8:F=JD9>D=CD<=?C8C<=F<E87CL<:C=BA<:H97B:L<:C8I=̂G8I9C@=D8?=F<C<7L9:<F=K@=>I<87=8:F=>B:H9:>9:;=<H9F<:><=CB=K<=8=J<CI8:F=JD9>D=9?:<><??87@=CB=K<=E7<?<7H<F=AB7=CD<=EGKI9>=9:C<7<?C̀=9:=JD9>D=>8?<=8=E<7L9C=?D8II=K<=7<̂G97<FMW89:C<:8:><=B7=9LE7BH<L<:C=BA=EGKI9>=?C7<<C?̀=D9;DJ8@?=B7=7B8F?̀=J9CD9:=CD<=79;DCfBAfJ8@=8:F=9:=?G>D=8L8::<7=8?=CB=<:?G7<=CD8C=8:@=8FH<7?<=<g<>C=B:=CD<=J<CI8:F=J9II=K<=BCD<7J9?<=L9:9L9h<FM=W89:C<:8:><B7=9LE7BH<L<:C=FB<?=:BC=9:>IGF<=8FF9:;=<OC78=I8:<?i=B7=F<H98C9:;=A7BL=CD<=<O9?C9:;=IB>8C9B:=BA=CD<?C7<<C̀=D9;DJ8@̀=B7=7B8FMW89:C<:8:><̀=7<E897̀=B7=BE<78C9B:=BA=;8?=B7=B9I=E9E<I9:<?=8:F=>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=;8?=B7=B9I=E9E<I9:<?=D8H9:;=8F98L<C<7=BA=?9O=9:>D<?=B7=I<??̀=9A=CD<=E9E<I9:<?=87<=>B:?C7G>C<F̀=L89:C89:<F̀=B7=7<E897<F=9:=8=L8::<7=CB<:?G7<=CD8C=8:@=8FH<7?<=<g<>C=B:=CD<=J<CI8:F=J9II=K<=BCD<7J9?<=L9:9L9h<FMW89:C<:8:><̀=7<E897̀=B7=BE<78C9B:=BA=<I<>C79>=C78:?L9??9B:=8:F=F9?C79KGC9B:=EBJ<7=I9:<?=8:F>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=F9?C79KGC9B:=EBJ<7=I9:<?̀=9A=CD<=F9?C79KGC9B:=EBJ<7=I9:<?=87<=>B:?C7G>C<F̀=L89:C89:<F̀=B77<E897<F=9:=8=L8::<7=CB=<:?G7<=CD8C=8:@=8FH<7?<=<g<>C=B:=CD<=J<CI8:F=J9II=K<=BCD<7J9?<=L9:9L9h<FMaE<78C9B:=B7=L89:C<:8:><̀=9:>IGF9:;=7<>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=7<><:CI@=F8L8;<F=E87C?̀=BA=?<7H9><8KI<=F9e<?8:F=I<H<<?=9:=<O9?C<:><=B:=a>CBK<7=]̀=]bcQ̀=B7=>B:?C7G>C<F=EG7?G8:C=CB=E87C=PQP=BA=CD<=R8CG78IS<?BG7><?=8:F=N:H97B:L<:C8I=T7BC<>C9B:=U>C=VWXY=Z=P[\MPQPQ]=<C=?<̂M_MXB:?C7G>C9B:=BA=97B:=8:F=>BEE<7=L9:9:;=C89I9:;?=K8?9:?=8:F=J8C<7=?CB78;<=87<8?MU=J<CI8:F=CD8C=9?=9:>9F<:C8II@=>7<8C<F=8?=8=7<?GIC=BA=B:<=B7=LB7<=BA=CD<=ABIIBJ9:;=8>C9H9C9<?jNO>8H8C9B:=AB7=L9:<78I=B7=?8:F=L9:9:;̀=9A=CD<=87<8=J8?=:BC=8=J<CI8:F=K<AB7<=<O>8H8C9B:M=dD9?<O<LEC9B:=FB<?=:BC=9:>IGF<=8=J<CI8:F=B:=B7=8Fk8><:C=CB=8=J8C<7=KBF@=BA=B:<=8>7<=B7=LB7<=9:=?9h<MXB:?C7G>C9B:=8:F=BE<78C9B:=BA=8=J8C<7=C7<8CL<:C=EB:F=B7=I8;BB:=9:=>BLEI98:><=J9CD=CD<7<̂G97<L<:C?=BA=?C8C<=B7=A<F<78I=J8C<7=EBIIGC9B:=>B:C7BI=7<;GI8C9B:?MU=F9e<F=87<8=8??B>98C<F=J9CD=8=I8:FlII=9A=CD<=I8:FlII=>BLEI9<?=J9CD=CD<=C<7L?=BA=CD<=I8:FlII>B:?C7G>C9B:=E<7L9C=8:F=9A=CD<=F9e<F=87<8=J8?=:BC=8=J<CI8:F=K<AB7<=F9e9:;MX78:K<77@=K<F?MdD<=>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=>78:K<77@=K<F?̀=9:>IGF9:;=8??B>98C<F=F9e<?=8:F=J8C<7=>B:C7BI=?C7G>CG7<?8??B>98C<F=J9CD=F9e<?̀=?G>D=8?=D<8F;8C<?̀=J<97?̀=8:F=F7BE=9:I<C=?C7G>CG7<?=?D8II=K<=>B:?9F<7<F=8J8C<7fF<E<:F<:C=8>C9H9C@MdD<=ABIIBJ9:;=8>C9H9C9<?=8??B>98C<F=J9CD=>78:K<77@=BE<78C9B:?=87<=:BC=>B:?9F<7<F=CB=K<=J8C<7F<E<:F<:CjdD<=>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=7B8F?̀=F9C>D<?̀=7<?<7HB97?̀=8:F=EGLE=DBG?<?=CD8C=87<=G?<F=FG79:;>GIC9H8C9B:=BA=>78:K<779<?MdD<=>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=?<>B:F87@=?GEEB7C=A8>9I9C9<?=AB7=?D9EE9:;̀=?CB78;<̀=E8>e8;9:;̀=E87e9:;̀=8:F?9L9I87=EG7EB?<?MdD<=F<LB:?C78C9B:=K@=8:=8EEI9>8:C=CD8C=CD<7<=9?=:B=A<8?9KI<=8:F=E7GF<:C=8IC<7:8C9H<=CB=CD<>B:?C7G>C9B:=BA=>78:K<77@=K<F?̀=9:>IGF9:;=F9e<?̀=9?=:BC=?GKk<>C=CB=<9CD<7=BA=CD<=ABIIBJ9:;E7<?GLEC9B:?jdD8C=CD<=A<8?9KI<=8:F=E7GF<:C=8IC<7:8C9H<?=CD8C=FB=:BC=9:HBIH<=8=J<CI8:F=87<=8H89I8KI<M



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����$'()*+,)*',)*-,)*+,)*',)*-,)*.,)*/,)*+,)*0,)*/,) 123453567389:;753<=5>?@=7<453;47?<349A7542345=B785<B453C7D4535E74;3<=5E9;;523A75;78853=A7?877C7D485B<542753F@349D57DB8G847HIJKLLMNOPQKRSTUVWXYZ[W\KVXKZVUVSKUY]K̂S]S_UTK\S_̀WVZQabcd()ef()'gg'hgij)kh'gh'gg'lm27<7A7?5>7?8B<85?7F@7849<n535E74;3<=5@875>7?H9453?753;8B58@:o7D454B58434753<=pB?567=7?3;5>7?H945?7F@9?7H7<48q42756B;;BE9<n5823;;53>>;Gr12751BE<829>5823;;523A75o@?98=9D49B<56B?54275?7n@;349B<5B65E74;3<=85@<=7?5429853?49D;75DB<D@??7<45E9425427o@?98=9D49B<5B654275843475=7>3?4H7<45B657<A9?B<H7<43;5F@3;94GIs>>?BA3;85@<=7?542985=9A989B<5823;;5<B45?7;97A7535>7?8B<5B654275<77=54B5B:439<535>7?H9456?BH5427584347=7>3?4H7<45B657<A9?B<H7<43;5F@3;94G53<=pB?54275tIuI5s?HG5vB?>85B65w<n9<77?8q5965?7F@9?7=Ix88@3<D75B6535>7?H945:G54275843475=7>3?4H7<45B657<A9?B<H7<43;5F@3;94G53<=pB?54275tIuI5s?HG5vB?>85B6w<n9<77?85823;;5<B45?7;97A7535>7?8B<5B654275<77=54B5B:439<53>>?BA3;5@<=7?542985=9A989B<q59653>>;9D3:;7IJKLLMNOyQKz\\TW{UVWXYK_S|}W_S̀ SYVZK̂X_K~SVTUY]K}ZSK\S_̀WVZQa�fd�)+�i.j)�)+g�h+g�)bcd()ef()'gg'hgij)kh'gh'gg'�)bcd()ef()'g++hg.j)-h+�h'g++ls>>;9D349B<56B?53>>?BA3;q53>>73;q53<=5988@3<D75B65E74;3<=5@875>7?H9485823;;5:75DB<D@??7<45E94254273>>;9D349B<56B?53>>?BA3;q53>>73;q53<=5988@3<D75B65B427?5<7D7883?G51BE<829>53>>?BA3;8I512753>>;9D3<456B?53E74;3<=5@875>7?H945823;;58@:H94542756B;;BE9<n54B54275�9?7D4B?5B65vBHH@<94G5�;3<<9<n53<=5�7A7;B>H7<4Is<53>>;9D349B<5DBH>;747=59<56@;;q5B<5356B?H58@>>;97=5:G54275843475=7>3?4H7<45B657<A9?B<H7<43;5F@3;94G3<=5H3=753A39;3:;75:G542751BE<829>5E94258@D25B427?59<6B?H349B<5385?7F@9?7=5:G54275�9?7D4B?5B6vBHH@<94G5�;3<<9<n53<=5�7A7;B>H7<4Im74;3<=5=7;9<7349B<5=BD@H7<4349B<5>?7>3?7=5:G542751BE<829>57<A9?B<H7<43;5DB<8@;43<45>@?8@3<454B�5���������5B?5E74;3<=5=7;9<7349B<5=BD@H7<4349B<5>?7>3?7=5:G535F@3;9�7=5E74;3<=5>?B67889B<3;5B?E74;3<=5DB<8@;43<459<53DDB?=3<D75E94254275?7F@9?7H7<485;9847=59<5�5���������q59<D;@=9<n5A7?9�D349B<5:G42751BE<829>57<A9?B<H7<43;5DB<8@;43<4IuB9;57?B89B<53<=584B?HE347?5H3<3n7H7<45>;3<85E9425?@<BC5D3;D@;349B<8I51275>;3<85823;;5:75>?7>3?7=3<=5873;7=5:G535>?B67889B<3;57<n9<77?5;9D7<87=5:G54275u43475B65�9D29n3<Is5H949n349B<5>;3<q5E29D25DBH>;9785E94253;;567=7?3;q58434753<=5;BD3;5;3E8q59654275>?B>B87=53D49A94G5E9;;5?78@;49<54275;B885B65E74;3<=5?78B@?D78I12753>>;9D3<45H3G57;7D454B523A7542753>>;9D349B<5>?BD7887=5@<=7?542756B;;BE9<n5>?BD7=@?7r1275E74;3<=53>>;9D349B<5823;;5:75?7A97E7=59HH7=9347;Gq579427?5>?9B?54B5B?5DB<D@??7<45E94254275?7A97E5B64275>?B>B87=5;3<=5@875?7A97Eq5E94254275@<=7?843<=9<n5423454275;3<=5@875?7A97E5H3G5<B45:75DBH>;747=345427549H7535=7D989B<5985?7<=7?7=5B<54275E74;3<=53>>;9D349B<I5w;7D49B<5B65429853;47?<349A75H3G5?7F@9?753?7B>7<9<n5B654275E74;3<=53>>;9D349B<59654275;3<=5@8753>>?BA3;59859<DB<89847<45E94254275E74;3<=53>>?BA3;IJKLLMNOOQK�SV[X]KX̂K_S�WS~KX̂K~SVTUY]K}ZSK\S_̀WVKU\\TW{UVWXYQa�fd�)+�i.j)�)+g�h++�)bcd()ef()'gg'hgij)kh'gh'gg'�)bcd()ef()'gg-h++j)ih�h'gg-�)bcd()ef()'gg�hg.j)�h'�h'gg��)bcd(ef()'g++hg.j)-h+�h'g++l1275�9?7D4B?5B65vBHH@<94G5�;3<<9<n53<=5�7A7;B>H7<45823;;57<8@?75423453;;5?7F@9?7=59<6B?H349B<59<D;@=9<n53E74;3<=5=7;9<7349B<53<=5>3GH7<45B653567752385:77<58@:H9447=I5x653<53>>;9D349B<5985<B45DBH>;747q5945823;;5<B4:75>?BD7887=5@<49;542753>>;9D3<45>?BA9=7853;;5B654275?7F@9?7=59<6B?H349B<54B54275�7>3?4H7<45B65vBHH@<94G



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����̂];@ICF9J;J>HC9@8DEF>;I@66@L98:;AG@H>JJ;JF766;7AA6Q;C@;L>C678<;KJ>;A>GB9C;<>H9J9@8J;TQ;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:78<;=>?>6@AB>8CR_@G;L>C678<;KJ>;A>GB9C;7AA69H7C9@8J;JKTB9CC><;98;H@8̀K8HC9@8;L9CF;7HC9?9C9>J;CF7C;<@;8@C;G>SK9G>7AAG@?76;TQ;CF>;5678898:;P@BB9JJ9@8;78<a@G;E@L8JF9A;b@7G<O;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<=>?>6@AB>8C;JF766;7AAG@?>O;7AAG@?>;L9CF;H@8<9C9@8J;@G;<>8Q;CF>;7AA69H7C9@8;L9CF98;cd;<7QJ;7IC>GG>H>9AC;@I;7;H@BA6>C>;7AA69H7C9@8DEF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8C;JF766;CG78JB9C;7AA69H7C9@8;B7C>G976J;78<;CF>G>A@GC;78<;G>H@BB>8<7C9@8;AG>A7G><;TQ;CF>;E@L8JF9A;>8?9G@8B>8C76;H@8JK6C78C;C@;CF>;>8?9G@8B>8C76H@BB9JJ9@8D;EF>;>8?9G@8B>8C76;H@BB9JJ9@8;B7Q;G>?9>L;CF>;B7C>G976J;78<;CG78JB9C;H@BB>8CJ;I@GH@8J9<>G7C9@8;C@;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CDEF>;7AA69H78C;JF766;A@JC;7;8@C9H>;@I;CF>;L>C678<;KJ>;A>GB9C;7AA69H7C9@8;@8;7;I@GB;AG@?9<><;TQ;CF>E@L8JF9AO;@8;CF>;JKT̀>HC;AG@A>GCQ;L9CF98;U?>;<7QJ;@I;JKTB9CC76;@I;7;H@BA6>C>;7AA69H7C9@8D5>GJ@8J;L9JF98:;C@;H@BB>8C;@8;CF>;7AA69H7C9@8;BKJC;JKTB9C;CF>9G;H@BB>8CJ;98;LG9C98:;C@;CF>;=9G>HC@G@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8C;AG9@G;C@;CF>;<7C>;78<;C9B>;J>C;98;CF>;8@C9H>D;5>GJ@8J;L9JF98:C@;G>H>9?>;8@C9H>;@I;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CeJ;<>H9J9@8;BKJC;JKTB9C;7LG9CC>8;G>SK>JC;C@;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CDEF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CeJ;<>H9J9@8;JF766;T>;B7<>;@86Q;7IC>G;G>?9>L98:CF>;G>A@GC;78<;G>H@BB>8<7C9@8;IG@B;CF>;E@L8JF9A;>8?9G@8B>8C76;H@8JK6C78CO;LG9CC>8;AKT69HH@BB>8CJO;78<;78Q;H@BB>8CJ;JKTB9CC><;TQ;CF>;>8?9G@8B>8C76;H@BB9JJ9@8DfF>8;7;L>C678<;KJ>;A>GB9C;9J;7AAG@?><O;7AAG@?><;L9CF;H@8<9C9@8JO;@G;<>89><;TQ;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@IP@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CO;LG9CC>8;8@C9H>;JF766;T>;J>8C;C@;CF>;7AA69H78C;78<;C@;766;A>GJ@8JLF@;F7?>;G>SK>JC><;8@C9H>;@I;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8CeJ;<>H9J9@8D;EF><>8976;@I;7;A>GB9C;JF766;T>;7HH@BA789><;TQ;7;LG9CC>8;G>7J@8;@I;<>8976Dg;A>GB9C;7AAG@?><;TQ;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8C;JF766;8@C;T>;9JJK><;@G>h>HC9?>;K8C96;id;H76>8<7G;<7QJ;I@66@L98:;CF>;<7C>;@I;CF>;7AAG@?76;78<;H@BA6978H>;L9CF;V;WWXYZjklmDEF>;I@66@L98:;AG@H>JJ;JF766;7AA6Q;C@;7AA>76J;@I;<>H9J9@8J;B7<>;TQ;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<=>?>6@AB>8C;@G;5678898:;P@BB9JJ9@8Rg8Q;98C>G>JC><;A>GJ@8;B7Q;7AA>76;7;<>H9J9@8;TQ;CF>;=9G>HC@G;@I;P@BBK89CQ;5678898:;78<;=>?>6@AB>8C@G;5678898:;P@BB9JJ9@8O;7J;7AA69H7T6>O;C@;7AAG@?>O;7AAG@?>;L9CF;H@8<9C9@8JO;@G;<>8Q;7;L>C678<;KJ>A>GB9C;C@;CF>;E@L8JF9A;b@7G<;TQ;U698:;7;LG9CC>8;JC7C>B>8C;H@8C79898:;CF>;JA>H9UH;G>7J@8J;I@G;CF>7AA>76;78<;J>CC98:;I@GCF;CF>;I7HCJ;>JC7T69JF98:;JC7CKJ;7J;78;98C>G>JC><;A>GJ@8D;EF9J;LG9CC>8;JC7C>B>8CBKJC;T>;U6><;L9CF;CF>;E@L8JF9A;P6>Gn;L9CF98;id;H76>8<7G;<7QJ;I@66@L98:;CF>;<7C>;@I;<>H9J9@8D;EF>;C9B>6QU698:;@I;7;JC7C>B>8C;J7C9JIQ98:;CF>;G>SK9G>B>8CJ;@I;CF9J;AG@?9J9@8;JF766;F7?>;CF>;>h>HC;@I;JC7Q98:;CF>A>GB9C;A>8<98:;CF>;E@L8JF9A;b@7G<eJ;<>H9J9@8;@8;7AA>76D



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����̂_Ù4a4[bcJ[P[Pd43@483QJeJ4123V9=3H@5=45I4U5AAC79@G4T?<7797D4<7>4V3B3?5:A37@482<??4@=<78A9@4<::?9H<@9574A<@3=9<?84<7>4@234=3:5=@<7>4=3H5AA37><@9574:=3:<=3>4FG4@2341567829:437B9=57A37@<?4H578C?@<7@4@54@2341567829:4;5<=>KT?<7797D4U5AA988957K4<7>4@23437B9=57A37@<?4H5AA988957J4123437B9=57A37@<?4H5AA9889574A<G4=3B936@234A<@3=9<?84<7>4:=5B9>34H5AA37@84I5=4H5789>3=<@9574FG4@2341567829:4;5<=>45=4T?<7797D4U5AA988957K<84<::?9H<F?3JMI@3=4=3B9364<7>48@C>G45I4@234<::?9H<@9574A<@3=9<?8K4@2341567829:437B9=57A37@<?4H578C?@<7@W84=3:5=@<7>4=3H5AA37><@957K4<7>4H5AA37@84I=5A4@23437B9=57A37@<?4H5AA988957K4@2341567829:4;5<=>45=T?<7797D4U5AA988957K4<84<::?9H<F?3K482<??425?>45734:CF?9H423<=97D4<I@3=4:CF?9H<@9574974<47368:<:3=45ID373=<?4H9=HC?<@9574974@2341567829:475@4?3884@2<74df3=37@4:3=8578K457345HHC:<7@45I43<H24C79@482<??4=3H39B3475@9H3J4g74@234H<8345I4<4897D?38@=CH@C=34H57@<9797D4A5=34@2<74I5C=4>63??97D4C79@8K475@9H34A<G4F34D9B374@54@234A<7<D3=45=45673=45I@2348@=CH@C=3K4625482<??4F34=3QC38@3>4@54:58@4@23475@9H34<@4@234:=9A<=G437@=<7H34@54@2348@=CH@C=3J4M75@9H34H57@<9797D4@234@9A3K4><@3K4:?<H34<7>4:C=:58345I4@23423<=97D482<??4F34:58@3>4FG4@234<::?9H<7@4574<I5=A4:=5B9>3>4FG4@2341567829:K4574@2348CFZ3H@4:=5:3=@G4<@4?3<8@4dO4><G84:=95=4@54@23423<=97DJMI@3=4H5A:?3@97D4@234=3B9364<7>425?>97D45734:CF?9H423<=97DK49I4854=3QC9=3>K4@2341567829:4;5<=>45=T?<7797D4U5AA988957482<??4<::=5B3K4<::=5B3469@24H57>9@957845=4>37G4@234<::?9H<@957469@2974hP4><G8<I@3=4=3H39:@45I4<74<::?9H<@957K4974<HH5=><7H3469@24@2984>9B98957JY=9@@37475@9H3482<??4F34837@4@54@234<::?9H<7@4C:574<::=5B<?K4<::=5B<?469@24H57>9@957845=4>379<?45I4<63@?<7>4C834:3=A9@4FG4@2341567829:4;5<=>45=4T?<7797D4U5AA988957J41234>379<?45I4<4:3=A9@482<??4F3<HH5A:<793>4FG4<46=9@@374=3<8574I5=4>379<?JM4:3=A9@4<::=5B3>4FG4@2341567829:4;5<=>45=4T?<7797D4U5AA988957482<??475@4F34988C3>45=43f3H@9B34C7@9?dP4H<?37><=4><G84I5??5697D4@234><@345I4@234<::=5B<?4<7>4H5A:?9<7H3469@24a4iijklmnopJqrsstuvwxryz{|}z{~r��zr�}|�~���r���}zr|��r~�z}�r{�r�{�}x



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����$'()*'+)*',)*'-)*'.)*'/)*'0)*'1)*'2)*'(3)*'4)*'5)*'6)*'7)*'8)*9:;78*(20-<*=*(3.>(+?*@A7B*C;B*+33+>30<*1>+3>+33+?*@A7B*C;B*+3((>3-<*,>(.>+3((DEFGHGIJKIJLLMNOJKPILHQLQRGRIPQILGHSQHTIJIHGUVMJPGWIJOPNXNPYINKIJILHQPGOPGWIZGPMJKWIMGRRIPFJKIPZQIJOHGRINKRN[G\IPFGI]NHGOPQHIQSÎQTTVKNPYI_MJKKNKUIJKWI]GXGMQLTGKPIRFJMMÌGIRQIJWXNRGWINKIZHNPNKUaIbFGI]NHGOPQHIQSQ̂TTVKNPYI_MJKKNKUIJKWI]GXGMQLTGKPIRFJMMISQHZJHWIPFGIMQOJPNQKIJKWIQPFGHINKSQHTJPNQKIOQKOGHKNKUIPFGZGPMJKWIPQIPFGIbQZKRFNLIGKXNHQKTGKPJMIOQKRVMPJKP\IZFQIRFJMMINRRVGIJILHGMNTNKJHYIcKWNKUIJRIPQIZFGPFGHIQKGQHITQHGIQSIPFGISQMMQZNKUIOHNPGHNJIJHGIMNdGMYIPQIJLLMYIPQIPFGIZGPMJKWebFGIZGPMJKWIRVLLQHPRIRPJPGIQHISGWGHJMIGKWJKUGHGWIQHIPFHGJPGKGWILMJKPR\IcRF\IQHIZNMWMNSGIJLLGJHNKUIQKIJMNRPIRLGONcGWINKILJHPIfghIQSIPFGIiJPVHJMIjGRQVHOGRIJKWIkKXNHQKTGKPJMI_HQPGOPNQKIlOPImn̂ oIpIfqrafghstGPIRGuavabFGIZGPMJKWIHGLHGRGKPRIZFJPINRINWGKPNcGWIJRIJIMQOJMMYIHJHGIQHIVKNuVGIGOQRYRPGTabFGIZGPMJKWIRVLLQHPRILMJKPRIQHIJKNTJMRIQSIJKINWGKPNcGWIMQOJMINTLQHPJKOGabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRIUHQVKWZJPGHIHGOFJHUGIWQOVTGKPGWÌYIJILV̀MNOIJUGKOYabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRIwQQWIJKWIRPQHTIOQKPHQMÌYIPFGIFYWHQMQUNOIJ̀RQHLPNQKIJKWIRPQHJUGIOJLJONPYIQSIPFGZGPMJKWabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRIZNMWMNSGIFJ̀NPJPÌYILHQXNWNKUÌHGGWNKU\IKGRPNKU\IQHISGGWNKUIUHQVKWRIQHIOQXGHISQHSQHTRIQSIZNMWMNSGIQHIZJPGHSQZM\INKOMVWNKUITNUHJPQHYIZJPGHSQZMIJKWIHJHG\IPFHGJPGKGW\IQHIGKWJKUGHGWZNMWMNSGIRLGONGRabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRILHQPGOPNQKIQSIRV̀RVHSJOGIZJPGHIHGRQVHOGRIJKWILHQXNRNQKIQSIXJMVJ̀MGIZJPGHRFGWRJKWIHGOFJHUNKUIUHQVKWZJPGHIRVLLMNGRabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRILQMMVPNQKIPHGJPTGKPÌYIRGHXNKUIJRIJÌNQMQUNOJMIJKWIOFGTNOJMIQxNWJPNQKÌJRNKabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRIGHQRNQKIOQKPHQMÌYIRGHXNKUIJRIJIRGWNTGKPJPNQKIJHGJIJKWIcMPGHNKUÌJRNK\IJ̀RQH̀NKURNMPIJKWIQHUJKNOITJPPGHabFGIZGPMJKWILHQXNWGRIRQVHOGRIQSIKVPHNGKPRINKIZJPGHISQQWIOYOMGRIJKWIKVHRGHYIUHQVKWRIJKWIRJKOPVJHNGRSQHIcRFabFGIbQZKRFNLIGKXNHQKTGKPJMIOQKRVMPJKPyRIHGLQHPIRFJMMÌGISQHZJHWGWIPQIPFGIbQZKRFNLIzQJHW\IZFNOFIRFJMMWGPGHTNKGIZFGPFGHIJIZGPMJKWIVRGILGHTNPIJLLMNOJPNQKITGGPNKUIPFGIHGuVNHGTGKPRIQSIpI{{|}~�IRFJMMÌGIHGuVNHGW\J̀RGWIQKIJIcKWNKUIPFJPIPFGIZGPMJKWINRIGRRGKPNJMIPQIPFGILHGRGHXJPNQKIQSIPFGIKJPVHJMIHGRQVHOGRIQSIPFGIbQZKRFNLa�VOFIWGPGHTNKJPNQKIRFJMMÌGÌJRGWIQKIJIcKWNKUIPFJPIQKGIQHITQHGIQSIPFGIOHNPGHNJIRGPISQHPFINKIRV̀RGOPNQKI���IQSPFNRIRGOPNQKIJHGITGPa�SIPFGIbQZKRFNLIzQJHWIWGPGHTNKGRIPFJPIPFGIZGPMJKWINRIKQPIGRRGKPNJMIPQIPFGILHGRGHXJPNQKIQSIPFGIKJPVHJMHGRQVHOGRIQSIPFGIbQZKRFNL\IPFGIbQZKRFNLIzQJHWyRIWGONRNQKIRFJMMÌGIRQIKQPGWIQKIPFGIbQZKRFNLIZGPMJKWNKXGKPQHYITJLIJPIPFGIPNTGINPINRIJTGKWGWaIbFGIHGuVGRPGWIJOPNXNPYIRFJMMÌGIJLLHQXGWIRV̀�GOPIPQIJMMIQPFGHJLLMNOJ̀MGIMJZRIJKWIHGUVMJPNQKRaEFGKIJIZGPMJKWIVKWGHIPZQIJOHGRINKIRN[GIFJRÌGGKIWGPGHTNKGWIPQÌGIGRRGKPNJMIPQIPFGIKJPVHJMIHGRQVHOGRIQSIPFGbQZKRFNLIJKWIPFGIbQZKRFNLIFJRISQVKWIPFJPIQKGIQHITQHGIQSIPFGIOHNPGHNJIRGPISQHPFINKIRV̀RGOPNQKI���IQSIPFNRRGOPNQKIGxNRPIJPIPFGIRNPG\IPFGIbQZKRFNLIRFJMMIKQPNSYIPFGIJLLMNOJKPINKIZHNPNKU\IRPJPNKUIPFGIHGJRQKRISQHWGPGHTNKNKUIPFGIZGPMJKWIPQÌGIGRRGKPNJMIPQIPFGILHGRGHXJPNQKIQSIPFGIKJPVHJMIHGRQVHOGRalSPGHIWGPGHTNKNKUIPFJPIJIZGPMJKWIMGRRIPFJKIPZQIJOHGRINKIRN[GINRIGRRGKPNJMIPQIPFGILHGRGHXJPNQKIQSIPFGIKJPVHJMHGRQVHOGRIQSIPFGIbQZKRFNL\IPFGIZGPMJKWIVRGILGHTNPIJLLMNOJPNQKIRFJMMÌGIHGXNGZGWIJOOQHWNKUIPQIPFGIRPJKWJHWRNKIpI{{|}~�a���������������������������������������������������9:;78*(20-<*=*(3.>(,?*@A7B*C;B*+33+>30<*1>+3>+33+?*@A7B*C;B*+3((>3-<*,>(.>+3((D



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����$'()*+,*-,*.,*/,*0,*1,*2,*3,*4,*5,*6,*'7)*+,*-,*'8)*'9)*':)*';)*<=>?@ABC>ABD?CE?>FDGHDC>?I>CGDJK?HL>?M>ANBCL?HJK>A?C=BL?KBFBLBEJ?DJK?CE?K>C>ANBJ>?I=>C=>A?D?M>ANBC?BL?OADJC>K?DA>DL?PEGGEILQR?M>ANBC?PEA?DJS?D@CBFBCS?GBLC>K?BJ?T?UUVWXW?L=DGG?JEC?Y>?DMMAEF>K?HJG>LL?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?BL?BJ?C=>?MHYGB@BJC>A>LCZ?C=>?M>ANBC?BL?J>@>LLDAS?CE?A>DGB[>?C=>?Y>J>\CL?K>ABF>K?PAEN?C=>?D@CBFBCSZ?DJK?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?BLEC=>AIBL>?GDIPHG?BJ?DGG?A>LM>@CL]?̂HYGB@?BJMHC?L=DGG?Y>?>FDGHDC>K?BJ?DMMAEFBJOZ?DMMAEFBJO?IBC=?@EJKBCBEJLZ?EAK>JSBJO?C=>?DMMGB@DCBEJ]?<=>?A>DLEJDYG>?HL>?EP?C=>?MAEM>ACS?BJFEGF>K?BJ?D@@EAKDJ@>?IBC=?DMMGB@DYG>?GE@DGEAKBJDJ@>L?DJK?LCDC>?GDI?L=DGG?DGLE?Y>?@EJLBK>A>K]_J?K>C>ANBJBJO?I=>C=>A?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?BL?BJ?C=>?MHYGB@?BJC>A>LCZ?C=>?Y>J>\C?I=B@=?A>DLEJDYGS?NDS?Y>>̀M>@C>K?CE?D@@AH>?PAEN?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?L=DGG?Y>?YDGDJ@>K?DODBJLC?C=>?A>DLEJDYGS?PEA>L>>DYG>K>CABN>JCL?EP?C=>?D@CBFBCS]?<=>?K>@BLBEJ?L=DGG?A>a>@C?C=>?JDCBEJDGZ?LCDC>Z?DJK?GE@DG?@EJ@>AJ?PEA?C=>?MAEC>@CBEJEP?JDCHADG?A>LEHA@>L?PAEN?MEGGHCBEJZ?BNMDBAN>JCZ?DJK?K>LCAH@CBEJ]?<=>?PEGGEIBJO?O>J>ADG?@ABC>ABD?L=DGG?Y>@EJLBK>A>KQ<=>?A>GDCBF>?>̀C>JC?EP?C=>?MHYGB@?DJK?MABFDC>?J>>K?PEA?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS]<=>?DFDBGDYBGBCS?EP?P>DLBYG>?DJK?MAHK>JC?DGC>AJDCBF>?GE@DCBEJL?DJK?N>C=EKL?CE?D@@ENMGBL=?C=>?>̀M>@C>KY>J>\CL?PAEN?C=>?D@CBFBCS]<=>?>̀C>JC?DJK?M>ANDJ>J@>?EP?C=>?Y>J>\@BDG?EA?K>CABN>JCDG?>b>@CL?I=B@=?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?NDS=DF>?EJ?C=>?MHYGB@?DJK?MABFDC>?HL>L?CE?I=B@=?C=>?DA>D?BL?LHBC>KZ?BJ@GHKBJO?C=>?Y>J>\CL?C=>?I>CGDJKLMAEFBK>]<=>?MAEYDYG>?BNMD@C?EP?>D@=?MAEMELDG?BJ?A>GDCBEJ?CE?C=>?@HNHGDCBF>?>b>@C?@A>DC>K?YS?EC=>A?>̀BLCBJO?DJKDJCB@BMDC>K?D@CBFBCB>L?BJ?C=>?IDC>AL=>K]<=>?MAEYDYG>?BNMD@C?EJ?A>@EOJB[>K?=BLCEAB@Z?@HGCHADGZ?L@>JB@Z?>@EGEOB@DGZ?EA?A>@A>DCBEJDG?FDGH>L?DJK?EJC=>?MHYGB@?=>DGC=?EA?LDP>CSZ?EA?\L=?EA?IBGKGBP>]c@EJENB@?FDGH>Z?YEC=?MHYGB@?DJK?MABFDC>Z?EP?C=>?MAEMEL>K?GDJK?@=DJO>?CE?C=>?O>J>ADG?<EIJL=BM?DA>D]<=>?LB[>?DJK?dHDGBCS?EP?C=>?I>CGDJK?Y>BJO?@EJLBK>A>K]<=>?\JKBJOL?EP?J>@>LLBCS?PEA?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?I=B@=?=DF>?Y>>J?NDK>?YS?EC=>A?DO>J@B>L]RNEHJC?EP?I>CGDJK?A>NDBJBJO?BJ?C=>?O>J>ADG?DA>D?DJK?MAÈBNBCS?CE?D?IDC>AIDS]ÂÈBNBCS?CE?DJS?IDC>A?YEKS]c̀C>JC?CE?I=B@=?HMGDJK?LEBG?>AELBEJ?DKeD@>JC?CE?C=>?MAEC>@C>K?I>CGDJK?BL?@EJCAEGG>K]R?I>CGDJK?HL>?M>ANBC?L=DGG?JEC?Y>?BLLH>K?HJG>LL?BC?BL?L=EIJ?C=DC?DJ?HJD@@>MCDYG>?KBLAHMCBEJ?IBGG?JEC?A>LHGC?CEC=>?DdHDCB@?A>LEHA@>L]?_J?K>C>ANBJBJO?I=>C=>A?D?KBLAHMCBEJ?CE?C=>?DdHDCB@?A>LEHA@>L?BL?HJD@@>MCDYG>Z?C=>Y>J>\CL?EHCGBJ>K?BJ?T?UUVWWf?DJK?C=>?@ABC>ABD?L>C?PEAC=?BJ?LHYL>@CBEJ?gUh?EP?C=BL?L>@CBEJ?L=DGG?Y>?@EJLBK>A>K]?RM>ANBC?L=DGG?JEC?Y>?BLLH>K?HJG>LL?C=>?DMMGB@DJC?DGLE?L=EIL?>BC=>A?EP?C=>?PEGGEIBJOQ<=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?BL?MABNDABGS?K>M>JK>JC?HMEJ?Y>BJO?GE@DC>K?BJ?C=>?I>CGDJKi?EAR?P>DLBYG>?DJK?MAHK>JC?DGC>AJDCBF>?KE>L?JEC?>̀BLC]jDBGHA>?CE?LHYNBC?D?@ENMG>C>?DMMGB@DCBEJ?NDS?Y>?A>DLEJ?PEA?K>JBDG?EP?D?I>CGDJK?HL>?M>ANBC]k=BG>?K>C>ANBJBJO?C=>?>̀M>@C>K?Y>J>\CL?EP?D?MAEMEL>K?I>CGDJK?HL>?M>ANBC?DJK?BCL?DGC>AJDCBF>LZ?DJ?DA>D?JECMA>L>JCGS?EIJ>K?YS?C=>?DMMGB@DJC?I=B@=?@EHGK?A>DLEJDYGS?Y>?EYCDBJ>KZ?HCBGB[>KZ?>̀MDJK>KZ?EA?NDJDO>K?BJEAK>A?CE?PHG\GG?C=>?YDLB@?MHAMEL>?EP?C=>?MAEMEL>K?D@CBFBCS?NDS?Y>?@EJLBK>A>K?DL?D?P>DLBYG>?DJK?MAHK>JCDGC>AJDCBF>?PEA?M>ANBCC>K?D@CBFBCB>L]RJ?DGC>AJDCBF>?C=DC?>JCDBGL?=BO=>A?@ELCLZ?DL?K>L@ABY>K?BJ?lmno]pmmDqoor?EP?C=>?sB@=BODJ?RKNBJBLCADCBF>?tEK>?BLJEC?P>DLBYG>?DJK?MAHK>JC?BP?C=EL>?=BO=>A?@ELCL?DA>?HJA>DLEJDYG>]?_J?K>C>ANBJBJO?I=>C=>A?LH@=?@ELCL?DA>HJA>DLEJDYG>Z?C=>?uBA>@CEA?EP?tENNHJBCS?̂GDJJBJO?DJK?u>F>GEMN>JCZ?̂GDJJBJO?tENNBLLBEJZ?EA?<EIJL=BMvEDAK?I=B@=>F>A?BL?DMMGB@DYG>?L=DGG?@EJLBK>A?YEC=?EP?C=>?PEGGEIBJOQ



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����̂__̀abcd̂efghijklmnifĝfôpknqmgĵrinismnifĝtlftfhmqhduvw0x).y,3z){).|4}.3~)��0()�w()1||1}|,z)�}1|}1||1~)��0()�w()1|..}|3z)2}.4}1|..�6?98@CJ:89@?9@8=9;?CC9?A9O8=;<@DC9>@9=7896?O@C7>FQ9N>=>M<=>?@9C7<;;9K89:8RJ>:8D9>@9>@C=<@B8C9O78:89=78:89<:8;?CC8C9?A9O8=;<@D9:8C?J:B8CH967896?O@C7>F98@E>:?@N8@=<;9B?@CJ;=<@=9C7<;;9:8E>8O9<@9<FF;>B<@=�C9N>=>M<=>?@9F;<@<@D9=:<@CN>=9<9:8B?NN8@D<=>?@9=?9=789�>:8B=?:9?A9T?NNJ@>=L9�;<@@>@M9<@D9�8E8;?FN8@=H96789�>:8B=?:9?AT?NNJ@>=L9�;<@@>@M9<@D9�8E8;?FN8@=Q9�;<@@>@M9T?NN>CC>?@Q9?:96?O@C7>F9�?<:DQ9<C9<FF;>B<K;89C7<;;9:8E>8O9=78<FF;>B<@=�C9N>=>M<=>?@9F;<@9<@D9B?@C>D8:9=7896?O@C7>F98@E>:?@N8@=<;9B?@CJ;=<@=�C9:8B?NN8@D<=>?@9<C9F<:=9?A9=78O8=;<@D9JC89F8:N>=9:8E>8O9F:?B8CCH9�9N>=>M<=>?@9F;<@Q9>A9:8RJ>:8DQ9C7<;;9K89<FF:?E8D9<C9F<:=9?A9=789O8=;<@D9JC8F8:N>=9D8B>C>?@H9S>=>M<=>?@9C7<;;9@?=9K89B?@C>D8:8D9<9CJKC=>=J=89A?:9N<�>@M9<;;9F:JD8@=9<==8NF=C9=?9<E?>D9O8=;<@D>NF<B=CH�:>?:9=?9B?@C>D8:>@M9<9F:?F?C<;9A?:9O8=;<@D9N>=>M<=>?@Q9>=9NJC=9K89C7?O@9=7<=9>=9>C9F:<B=>B<;9=?9:8F;<B89=78O8=;<@D9:8C?J:B89E<;J8C9O7>B79O>;;9K89>NF<B=8DQ9>@B;JD>@M9�??D9F:8E8@=>?@Q9O>;D;>A897<K>=<=Q9M:?J@DO<=8::8C?J:B89F:?=8B=>?@9<@D9:8B7<:M8Q9F?;;J=>?@9=:8<=N8@=Q98:?C>?@9B?@=:?;Q9@J=:>8@=9C?J:B8CQ9<8C=78=>BCQ:8B:8<=>?@Q9?F8@9CF<B89<@D9<@L9?=78:9E<;J8C9>D8@=>�8DH\A9D8=8:N>@8D9KL9=7896?O@C7>F98@E>:?@N8@=<;9B?@CJ;=<@=9=7<=9=789:8RJ>:8N8@=C9?A9CJKC8B=>?@9���9?A9=7>CC8B=>?@9<:89N8=Q9=789A?;;?O>@M9B:>=8:><9C7<;;9K89B?@C>D8:8D9O78@9:8E>8O>@M9<@9<FF;>B<@=�C9N>=>M<=>?@9F:?F?C<;�S>=>M<=>?@9C7<;;9K89F:?E>D8D9?@9C>=89O78:89F:<B=>B<;9<@D9K8@8�B><;9=?9=789O8=;<@D9:8C?J:B8CH9\A9?@�C>=8N>=>M<=>?@9>C9@?=9F:<B=>B<;9<@D9K8@8�B><;Q9=78@9N>=>M<=>?@9>@9=789>NN8D><=89E>B>@>=LQ9O>=7>@9=789C<N8O<=8:C78D9?A9=789F8:N>==8D9<B=>E>=L9N<L9K89B?@C>D8:8DH9�@;L9>A9<;;9?A9=78C89?F=>?@C9<:89>NF:<B=>B<;9C7<;;N>=>M<=>?@9K89B?@C>D8:8D98;C8O78:8H�@L9F:?F?C<;9C7<;;98@CJ:89=7<=9=78:89O>;;9K89@?9@8=9;?CC9=?9=789O8=;<@D9:8C?J:B89E<;J8CH6789N>=>M<=>?@9F;<@9NJC=9B?NF;L9O>=79<;;9<FF;>B<K;89A8D8:<;Q9C=<=8Q9<@D9;?B<;9;<OCH�9F;<@9=?9N?@>=?:9F:8C8:E8D9<@D9:8F;<B8N8@=9O8=;<@DCHI8=;<@D9N>=>M<=>?@9<@D9N?@>=?:>@M9F;<@C9C7<;;9K8B?N89B?@D>=>?@C9=?9=789O8=;<@D9JC89F8:N>=9<@D9C7<;;9K89=78:8CF?@C>K>;>=L9?A9=789<FF;>B<@=9?:9>=C9CJBB8CC?:CHP>@<@B><;9<CCJ:<@B8C9=7<=9N>=>M<=>?@9>C9<BB?NF;>C78D9<C9CF8B>�8D9KL9=789F8:N>=9B?@D>=>?@9N<L9K89:8RJ>:8D9KL=789�>:8B=?:9?A9T?NNJ@>=L9�;<@@>@M9<@D9�8E8;?FN8@=Q9�;<@@>@M9T?NN>CC>?@Q9?:96?O@C7>F9�?<:DQ9<C<FF;>B<K;8H�@L9N>=>M<=>?@9<B=>E>=L9C7<;;9K89B?NF;8=8D9K8A?:89>@>=><=>?@9?A9?=78:9F8:N>==8D9<B=>E>=>8CQ9J@;8CC9<9F7<C8DB?@BJ::8@=9CB78DJ;89B<@9K89<M:88D9JF?@9K8=O88@9=789�>:8B=?:9?A9T?NNJ@>=L9�;<@@>@M9<@D9�8E8;?FN8@=Q�;<@@>@M9T?NN>CC>?@Q9?:96?O@C7>F9�?<:DQ9<C9<FF;>B<K;8Q9<@D9=789<FF;>B<@=HI8=;<@D9N>=>M<=>?@9F;<@C9=7<=9B:8<=89;8CC9=7<@9=O?9<B:89O8=;<@DC9C7<;;9N88=9?@89?A9=789B?@D>=>?@C9;>C=8D9>@�JKC8B=>?@9���������H]̂__̀ab�d̂�knqmgĵ�hk̂tklrin̂�fgjinifgĥfôihh�mg�kd



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� ����$'()*'+)*',)*'-)*'.)*'/)*'0)*'1)*'2)*'3)*'4)*'5)*'2)*'3)*'4)*'6)*789-.*2:;<=*>*2?@A2@B*CD-E*F9E*3??3A?;=*GA3?A3??3B*CD-E*F9E*3?22A?<=*4A2@A3?22HIJKLMNOKPQROLRSLTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\LTRUUNaaNRẀLROLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]̀L[a[__ZNP[dZK̀LaJ[ZZL[QQ[PJL[WXLOK[aRW[dZKLPRW]NQNRWaLPRWaN]KOK]LWKPKaa[OXLQRLKWaVOKLQJ[QLQJKLNWQKWQLRSLQJNa[OQNPZKLbNZZLdKLSVZeZZK]̀LQRLUNWNUNfKLROLUNQN\[QKL][U[\KLROLNU_[NOUKWQLQR̀LKWPOR[PJUKWQLNẀLROLNWQKOSKOKWPKbNQJLW[QVO[ZLOKaRVOPKaL[W]L_ORPKaaKaLbNQJNWLQJKL_ORQKPQK]LbKQZ[W]̀LROLQRLRQJKObNaKLNU_OR̂KLROLU[NWQ[NWLQJKb[QKOLgV[ZNQXhIJKLMNOKPQROLRSLTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\LTRUUNaaNRẀLROLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]LaJ[ZZLeiL[OK[aRW[dZKLQNUKLSROLQJKLVW]KOQ[jNW\L[W]LPRU_ZKQNRWLRSL[ZZL[PQN̂NQNKaL[W]LaQOVPQVOKàL[aL[__ZNP[dZKhkRZZRbNW\LQJKL[__OR̂[ZLRSLQJKLbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQL[__ZNP[QNRẀL[L_KOUNQLaJ[ZZLdKLNaaVK]LV_RWL]KQKOUNW[QNRWQJ[QL[ZZLRQJKOLOKgVNOKUKWQaLRSLQJKLRO]NW[WPKL[W]LZ[bLJ[̂KLdKKWLUKQ̀LNWPZV]NW\LaNQKL_Z[ẀL_Z[QLROLZ[W]LVaK[__OR̂[ZàL[aL[__ZNP[dZK̀L[W]LNWPZV]NW\LNaaV[WPKLRSLOKgVNOK]L_KOUNQaLdXLQJKLPRVWQXLROLQJKLaQ[QKL]K_[OQUKWQRSLKŴNORWUKWQ[ZLgV[ZNQXLVW]KOL_[OQLlmlLRSLQJKLn[QVO[ZLoKaRVOPKaL[W]LpŴNORWUKWQ[ZLYORQKPQNRWLqPQLrsTtuLlvwhlmlmxLKQLaKghyhIJKLMNOKPQROLRSLTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\LTRUUNaaNRẀLROLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]̀L[a[__ZNP[dZK̀LV_RWLNaaV[WPKLRSL[LbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQ̀LU[XLOKgVNOKLQJKL[__ZNP[WQLQRLeZKLbNQJLQJKLIRbWaJN_IOK[aVOKOLP[aJ̀LPKOQNeK]LPJKPj̀LROL[WLNOOK̂RP[dZKLd[WjLZKQQKOLRSLPOK]NQLNWL[WL[URVWQLQJKLMNOKPQROLRSTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\LTRUUNaaNRWLROLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]̀L[aL[__ZNP[dZK̀L]KQKOUNWKaNaLWKPKaa[OXLQRLKWaVOKLPRU_ZN[WPKLbNQJLQJKLbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQL[__OR̂[ZLPRW]NQNRWaL[W]LQJNaL[OQNPZKhqQLWRLQNUKLaJ[ZZLQJKLMNOKPQROLRSLTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\LTRUUNaaNRẀLROLIRbWaJN_cR[O]̀L[aL[__ZNP[dZK̀LNaaVKL[LbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQLQJ[QL[ZZRbaL[LUROKLKiQKWaN̂KL[ZQKO[QNRWLRSLQJKLbKQZ[W]LQJ[W_KOUNQQK]LdXLaQ[QKLROLSK]KO[ZLZ[bhzKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQaLSROLaK[aRW[ZLR_KO[QNRWaLWKK]LWRQLdKLOKWKbK]L[WWV[ZZXLVWZKaaLRQJKObNaKLaQ[QK]LNWLQJK_KOUNQhqWXLPJ[W\KLQJ[QLNWPOK[aKaLQJKLaNfKLROLaPR_KLRSLQJKLR_KO[QNRWL[W]LQJ[QL[{KPQaLQJKLPONQKON[LPRWaN]KOK]LNW[__OR̂NW\LQJKL_KOUNQ̀L[aL]KQKOUNWK]LdXLQJKLMNOKPQROLRSLTRUUVWNQXLYZ[WWNW\L[W]LMK̂KZR_UKWQ̀LYZ[WWNW\TRUUNaaNRẀLROLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]̀L[aL[__ZNP[dZK̀LaJ[ZZLOKgVNOKLQJKLeZNW\LRSL[LWKbLbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQ[__ZNP[QNRWhqWXLQKU_RO[OX̀LaK[aRW[Z̀LROL_KOU[WKWQLR_KO[QNRWLQJ[QLNaL]NaPRWQNWVK]LSROLQbRLXK[OaLROLQbRLaK[aRWaLaJ[ZZLdK_OKaVUK]LQRLJ[̂KLdKKWL[d[W]RWK]L[W]LQJKLbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQL[VQRU[QNP[ZZXL̂RN]K]hqWXL_KOUNQL\O[WQK]LVW]KOLQJNaL]N̂NaNRWLU[XLdKLOK̂RjK]LROLaVa_KW]K]LdXLQJKLIRbWaJN_LcR[O]̀L[SQKOLWRQNPK[W]L[WLR__ROQVWNQXLSROL[LJK[ONW\̀LSROL[WXLRSLQJKLSRZZRbNW\LP[VaKa|qL̂NRZ[QNRWLRSL[LPRW]NQNRWLRSLQJKL_KOUNQhsNaOK_OKaKWQ[QNRWLROLS[NZVOKLQRLSVZZXL]NaPZRaKLOKZK̂[WQLS[PQaLNWLQJKL[__ZNP[QNRWhqLPJ[W\KLNWL[LPRW]NQNRWLQJ[QLOKgVNOKaL[LQKU_RO[OXLROL_KOU[WKWQLPJ[W\KLNWLQJKL[PQN̂NQXhqWL[__ZNP[WQLbJRLJ[aLOKPKN̂K]L[LbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQLVW]KOLQJNaL]N̂NaNRWLaJ[ZZLPRU_ZXLbNQJLQJKLSRZZRbNW\LNWPRWWKPQNRWLbNQJL[WXLPRWaQOVPQNRWLROLRQJKOL[PQN̂NQXLRWLQJKL_OR_KOQXLSROLbJNPJLQJKLbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQLJ[adKKWLNaaVK]|s[NWQ[NWL[ZZLaRNZLKORaNRWLPRWQORZLaQOVPQVOKaL[W]LUK[aVOKàLNWPZV]NW\̀LdVQLWRQLZNUNQK]LQR̀LaNZQLSKWPKàLaQO[bd[ZKLdKOUàL[W]LaK]NUKWQLQO[_ahLIJKL_KOUNQQKKLaJ[ZZL_OR̂N]KLSROL_KONR]NPLNWa_KPQNRWaLQJORV\JRVQLQJK]VO[QNRWLRSLQJKL_OR}KPQhs[NWQ[NWLPZK[OL]KZNWK[QNRWLRSLQJKL_ORQKPQK]LbKQZ[W]àLaRLU[OjK]LdXLQJKLIRbWaJN_LKŴNORWUKWQ[ZPRWaVZQ[WQL]VONW\LQJKLRW~aNQKLNWa_KPQNRẀLaRLQJ[QLaVPJLZRP[QNRWaL[OKL̂NaNdZKLQRL[ZZLPRWaQOVPQNRWLbROjKOahYRaQLRWLQJKLaNQK̀L_ONROLQRLPRUUKWPKUKWQLRSLbROjLRWLQJKLaNQKL[W]LPRWQNWVNW\LQJORV\JRVQLQJKL]VO[QNRWRSLQJKL_OR}KPQ̀L[LPR_XLRSLQJKL[__OR̂K]LbKQZ[W]LVaKL_KOUNQLPRWQ[NWNW\LQJKLPRW]NQNRWaLRSLNaaV[WPK̀LNWL[PRWa_NPVRVaLU[WWKOLaVPJLQJ[QLQJKLbRO]NW\LRSLaVPJL_KOUNQLNaL[̂[NZ[dZKLSROL_VdZNPLNWa_KPQNRWh



���������� ���	
�	�
�������������	������

�����������������������	��
������� !"��#�$�����$%���&�	��#
	"� �$��̂X_̀ abc̀ abdêfghij*.kl(m*n*.opq.lr*stiu*vhu*/oo/qolm*wq/oq/oo/r*stiu*vhu*/o..qo(m*0q.pq/o..xV>L9I@@H6AI>:9=;49;I?9E88>9F3I>:879I9=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:9CIL9I@@HL9B439I>9IC8>7C8>:96>9=36:6>F9:49:;8y638A:4394B9z4CCJ>6:L92HI>>6>F9I>79y858H4@C8>:GVC8>7C8>:?9:49I>9I@@345879=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:9?;IHH9E89F3I>:879EL9:;89?IC898>:6:L9:;I:978A67879:;8436F6>IH9=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:96>9IAA437I>A89=6:;9:;89@34A87J38?9I>79A36:836I9?8:9B43:;96>9:;6?9?8A:64>GV@@H6AI:64>G9V>9I@@H6AI:64>9B439I>9IC8>7879=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:9?;IHH9E89?JEC6::879:49:;89y638A:4394Bz4CCJ>6:L92HI>>6>F9I>79y858H4@C8>:9@36439:49:;898N@63I:64>97I:894B9:;898N6?:6>F9=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:G2JEH6A9;8I36>FG9<;89I@@H6AI:64>9B439I>9IC8>7879=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:9?;IHH9E89?JE{8A:9:49:;89?IC89>4:6A8?I>79;8I36>F?9I>79IHH94:;839@34A87J38?938UJ63879B439:;896>6:6IH9I@@H6AI:64>Gy8A6?64>G9236439:4978A676>F9:;89I@@H6AI:64>O9:;89<4=>?;6@9|4I37O92HI>>6>F9z4CC6??64>O9439y638A:4394Bz4CCJ>6:L92HI>>6>F9I>79y858H4@C8>:9?;IHH938B839:;89I@@H6AI:64>9:49:;89<4=>?;6@98>5634>C8>:IHA4>?JH:I>:9B439I938A4CC8>7I:64>9I>79:49:;898>5634>C8>:IH9A4CC6??64>9B439A4CC8>:?GV@@8IH?G9V@@8IH?94B9I978A6?64>94>9I>9IC8>7C8>:9EL9:;89y638A:4394B9z4CCJ>6:L92HI>>6>F9I>7y858H4@C8>:9I>79:;892HI>>6>F9z4CC6??64>9?;IHH9B4HH4=9:;89A36:836I98?:IEH6?;8796>9}JE?8A:64>9~~�������GWXYYZ[\[̂X�a��aedX���X�a�����d��bX��X��a�dacX����a�d�̂fghij*.kl(m*n*.opq.wr*stiu*vhu*/oo/qolm*wq/oq/oo/r*stiu*vhu*/o..qo(m*0q.pq/o..x<;894=>8394B9I>L9@34@83:L9B439=;6A;9I9=8:HI>79J?89@83C6:9=I?9I@@H6879B439J>7839:;6?97656?64>9I>79=I?978>687OJ@4>9I@@8IHO9EL9:;89<4=>?;6@9|4I37O9CIL938UJ8?:9I9385IHJI:64>94B9:;89IK8A:879@34@83:L9EL9:;89<4=>?;6@9|4I374B938568=9B439I??8??C8>:9@J3@4?8?9:4978:83C6>896:?9BI639CI3D8:95IHJ89J>7839:;89J?8938?:36A:64>G9V9HI>74=>839=;46?9IFF3685879EL9I978:83C6>I:64>O9IA:64>O94396>IA:64>9J>7839:;6?9I3:6AH89CIL9@34:8?:9I>79I@@8IH9:;I:978:83C6>I:64>OIA:64>94396>IA:64>9@J3?JI>:9:49:;89�8>83IH9234@83:L9<IN9VA:9��z�9�9TSSGS98:9?8UG�GWXYYZ[\ŶXd������XWXYYZ[�]̂X��aea��ac�





 

 1 2/29/16, as revised 

 MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION 

 

 RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

RULE 1.  AUTHORIZATION. 

 

The Meridian Township Environmental Commission, hereinafter called the Commission, is 

established pursuant to Chapter 121 of the Code of Ordinances, Charter Township of Meridian. 

 

RULE 2.  RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 

The Environmental Commission shall: 

 

a. Advise the Township Board, officials and staff on matters pertaining to 

environmental protection and water conservation, management of natural resources and 

preservation of open space. 

 

b. Identify ways to ensure and improve the quality of the Township's environment in 

the interest of the public health, safety and general welfare. 

 

c. Develop educational and outreach programs for local schools, businesses and 

individuals to encourage environmental stewardship, protect property values and avoid 

unnecessary financial costs for correcting environmental problems. 

 

d. Review and offer recommendations for Township ordinances, operating 

procedures and programs in order to achieve the stated purposes in Chapter 121 and 

ensure compliance with applicable state and federal environmental laws. 

 

e. Assume the duties of the Township Wetland Board as outlined in Section 105-

16(c) of the Township Code of Ordinances. 

 

f. Offer recommendations for the Township budget as it pertains to the Commission. 

 

g. Assume such other duties as may be assigned by the Township Board. 

 

h. Encourage and utilize the involvement of residents and experts in achieving the 

environmental goals of the Township. 

 

RULE 3.  COMPOSITION, TERMS AND VACANCIES. 

 

3.1 Composition and Appointment.  The Commission shall consist of seven (7)  

members appointed by the Township Board.  Members shall be Township residents and 

shall have an interest or expertise in natural resources, environmental protection or 

ecology.  In addition, two student members shall be appointed. These two members shall 

be voting members.  

 

3.2 Terms.  Terms of appointment shall be for three (3) years or until a successor is 

appointed, the student members shall serve one (1) year terms. 



 

 2 2/29/16, as revised 

 

3.3 Unexpired Terms.  A member appointed to fill an unexpired term shall serve for 

the remainder of the unexpired term or until a successor is appointed. 

 

RULE 4.  REMOVAL FROM OFFICE. 

 

A member may be removed from office by the Township Board for nonperformance of duty or 

misconduct in office, following written charges and after a public hearing. 

 

RULE 5.  OFFICERS. 

 

5.1 Selection.  At its first meeting in January, the Commission shall select a chair and 

a vice chair from among its members.  

 

5.2 Terms.  Term of office shall be one (1) year, or until a successor is selected.  

 

5.3 Duties. 

 

a. The chair shall preside at all meetings, authorize calls for special meetings, and perform 

such other duties as may be specified by the Commission. 

 

b. The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair's absence. 

 

c. In the event the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice chair shall succeed to this 

office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a successor to the office of 

vice-chair for the unexpired term. 

 

RULE 6.  COMMITTEES. 

 

6.1 Purpose.  The Commission may establish committees necessary to assist it in 

fulfilling its responsibilities and shall define the purpose, functions, tenure, selection of 

chair, meeting and reporting requirements for each committee.  The establishment of 

committees shall not preclude the use of individuals or study groups in the exploration or 

research of specific environmental issues. 

 

6.2 Appointments.  Committee members shall be appointed by the chair, with 

concurrence of the Commission.  A committee may be discharged from its responsibilities 

by the Commission  



 

 3 2/29/16, as revised 

 

6.3 Public Participation.  Committees shall meet all requirements for public 

participation and access to records as provided in Rule 7 of these Rules. 

 

RULE 7.  MEETINGS. 

 

7.1 Regular Meetings.  The Commission may call one regular meeting each month, 

pending business. 

 

7.2 Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the chair or shall be called 

at the written request of two (2) or more Commission members.  The meeting notice shall 

include the purpose of the special meeting.  At least forty-eight (48) hours notice of special 

meetings shall be given to Commission members. 

 

7.3 Meeting Schedule.  A schedule of regular meetings, including date, time and 

place, shall be established for each calendar year and shall be made available to the 

public in advance of said meetings.  Changes in the schedule shall be posted for the 

public. 

 

7.4 Location.  Meetings shall be held at a Township facility unless otherwise indicated. 

 

7.5 Quorum.  Four (4) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business unless otherwise indicated in these rules or required by Township ordinance, 

state or federal law.  A member shall notify the chair or designated staff if the member will 

be absent from a meeting. 

 

7.6 Public Participation. 

 

a. All regular and special meetings, work sessions or public hearings shall be open to the 

public, unless otherwise provided for in Township ordinance, state or federal law. 

 

b. Opportunity for public comment shall be provided in accordance with established 

Commission or Township rules and procedures (See attached Exhibit A). 

 

c. The chair may call to order any person who disrupts the orderly conduct of a meeting and 

prohibit said person from further participation or attendance at such meeting. 

 

7.7 Agenda. 

 

a. An agenda shall be established for each meeting by the chair and designated Township 

staff and be made available to the Commission and public in advance of the meeting.  The 

order of business shall be determined by the chair with concurrence of the Commission. 



 

 4 2/29/16, as revised 

 

b. Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be limited to those included in 

the call-to-meeting notice unless all members are present and vote otherwise. 

 

7.8 Decisions.  Providing a quorum is present, a simple majority of those present and 

voting shall be required for Commission action, unless otherwise provided for in these 

rules, other Township or state statutes or parliamentary authority, as adopted. 

 

7.9 Records.  Designated Township staff shall be responsible for minutes and other 

official records of all Commission meetings and actions, including supporting 

documentation.  Notice of meetings, minutes and other records shall be available to the 

public in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (P.A. 442, 1976, as amended) 

and Open Meetings Acts (P.A. 267, 1976, as amended). 

 

RULE 8.  PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY. 

 

Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern all questions of procedure not otherwise 

provided for in these rules or by Township, state or federal law. 

 

RULE 9.  SUSPENSION OF RULES AND AMENDMENT. 

 

9.1 Suspension.  A rule may be suspended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of Commission 

members present and voting at a meeting, provided said action is in accordance with 

established state or federal law, Township ordinance and parliamentary authority. 

 

9.2 Amendment.  Rules not required by state or federal law or Township ordinance 

may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Commission, provided thirty (30) days 

notice and an opportunity for comment is given to the public. 



 

 5 2/29/16, as revised 

 
EXHIBIT A:  PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS RULE 7.6 

 

1. The number of persons admitted to a meeting room will be in keeping with public safety 

requirements and availability of space.  Efforts will be made to provide adequate room to 

accommodate those in attendance. 

 

2. Established protocols for public participation will be announced at the beginning of the 

meeting. 

 

3. Opportunity to speak will be granted either under Public Remarks or during a public 

hearing, as most appropriate. 

 

4. Reasonable time limits may be allotted for public comments, in keeping with other 

business which must be considered at a particular meeting. 

 

5. A member of the public will be provided no less than three minutes to speak. 

 

6. Those completing a request form in writing shall be called upon first to speak. 

 

7. Members of the public will identify themselves by name and address prior to presenting 

their comments. 

 

8. Written communications will be read into the record during a meeting when requested by 

the author.  All written communications will become part of the Commission record. 

 

9. The Chair, without objections from the Commission, may invite members of the public to 

participate in informal discussion on all or selected agenda items during Commission work 

sessions. 





































Jol
ly

Rd

C &
O R

ail
roa

d
k k

k
k

k
Im

pa
ct 

Ar
ea

We
tla

nd

35
-18

EA
rb

utu
sD

r

We
no

na
hD

r

C a bare t T
rl

Hi
aw

a th
aD

r

BonanzaDr

W Arbutus Dr

Ots
ego Dr

Wa
nd

eri
ng

Way

±EA
rb

utu
sD

r









 

 

To:  Environmental Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  January 3, 2018 

 

Re: 2018 Strategic Plan 

 

 

At its last meeting on December 6, 2017 the Environmental Commission discussed the 

establishment of goals for 2018, settling on the following items: 

 

1. Collaborate with the Park Commission and Transportation Commission on wayfinding 

2. Review progress on the Greenspace Plan 

3. Actualize the Climate Sustainability Plan and review ordinances related to the Climate 

Sustainability Plan 

4. Work with the Economic Development Director to discuss how greening the Township 

might attract green businesses 

5. Collaborate with the Land Preservation Advisory Board 

 

The above goals will not preclude the Environmental Commission from working on other projects; 

they simply provide a guide for activities for the year.  The following motion is included to formally 

adopt the 2018 Environmental Commission Strategic Plan. 

 

• MOTION to adopt the 2018 Environmental Commission Strategic Plan 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ENVCOMM\Goals & Objectives\2018\2018 EnvComm Goals.encomm1.docx 


	April 4 2018 Environmental Commisison Meeting Agenda
	USGS Coal Tar Fact Sheet 2016
	Key Findings: 
	PAH Levels in Asphalt-Based and Coal-Tar-Based Sealcoat
	Potential Risks to Human Health
	PAHs from coal-tar-based sealcoat contaminate house dust
	Living adjacent to coal-tar-sealed pavement increases cancer risk

	Potential Risks to Aquatic Life
	Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement is acutely toxic to aquatic biota1
	Runoff from coal-tar-sealcoated pavement damages DNA and impairs DNA repair

	Air-Quality Concerns
	References Cited
	Sidebars
	As Sealcoat Wears Off, Where Does It Go?
	Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons
	Coal tar


	Sample Coal tar sealer ordinance_recommendedbyHRWC
	March 7, 2018 Environmental Commission Minutes (Draft)
	Wetland Consultant ordinance review letter
	Wetland Protection Ordinance
	McConnell wetland comments
	ENV COMM Rules_Precedures-FINAL
	Ember Oaks 4 WUP_Submittal Letter
	Ember Oaks 4 - MDEQ App and Plans
	WUP 18-02 location map
	WUP 18-02 site plans
	2018 EnvComm Goals



